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A. Scheme of Teaching and Evaluation B.Com (Basic/Hons)

First Semester
Teaching
SL Course Title of the Course Category | Hours per | SEE | CIE| Total | Credits
No. Code of Courses Week Marks
(L+T+P)
1 |Lang.1.1 Language — I AECC 3+1+0 60 | 40 100 3
2 |[Lang.1.2 Language — II AECC 3+1+0 60 | 40 100 3
3 [B.Com.1.1 |Financial Accounting DSC 3+0+2 60 | 40 100 4
4 |B.Com.1.2 | Management Principles
o DSC 4+0+0 60 | 40 100 4
and Applications
5 |[B.Com.1.3 | Principles of Marketing DSC 4+0+0 60 | 40 100 4
6 [B.Com.1.4 D1g1.tal Fluency for SEC-SB 14042 30 | 20 50 ’
Business
OEC:
7 | B.Com.1.5 [ Accounting for Everyone OEC 3+0+0 60 40 100 3
OR
Financial Literacy
OR
Event Management
OR
Gender and Leadership
OR
Travel Agency and Tour
Operations
8 Yoga SEC-VB | 0+0+2 25 25 1
9 Health and Wellness SEC-VB 0+0+2 25 25 1
Sub —Total (A) 390 | 310 | 700 25

Acronyms Used

AECC : Ability Enhancement Compulsory Course

DSC : Discipline Specific Core (Course)
SEC-SB/VB : Skill Enhancement Course-Skill Based/Value Based
OEC : Open Elective Course

DSE : Discipline Specific Elective

SEE : Semester End Examination

CIE : Continuous Internal Evaluation

o O O O O O O O

L+T+P : Lecture + Tutorial + Practical(s)

Note: Practical Classes may be conducted in the Business Lab or in Computer Lab or in Class room depending on the
requirement. One batch of students should not exceed half (i.e., 50 or less than 50 students) of the number of
students in each class/section. Two Hours of Practical Class is equal to One Hour of Teaching, however,
whenever it is conducted for the entire class (i.e., more than 50 students) 2 Hours of Practical Class is equal to 2
Hours of Teaching.



Name of the Program: Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com.)
Course Code: B.Com. 1.1
Name of the Course: FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING

Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

4 Credits 3+0+2 Hrs 56 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Problem solving, tutorials, Group discussion, Seminar, Case studies and
field work etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the Students will be able to

a. Understand the theoretical framework of accounting as well accounting standards.

b. Demonstrate the preparation of financial statement of manufacturing and non- manufacturing entities of
sole proprietors.

c¢. Exercise the accounting treatments for consignment transactions & events in the books of consignor and
consignee.

d. Understand the accounting treatment for royalty transactions & articulate the Royalty agreements.

e. Outline the emerging trends in the field of accounting.

Syllabus: Teaching Hours

Module No. 1:  Theoretical Framework of Accounting 10

Introduction-Meaning and scope of Accounting- Accounting Terminologies-Uses and users of accounting
information-accounting process-Basis of accounting :Cash and Accrual basis-Branches of accounting-
Accounting principles-Concepts and conventions-Accounting standards : Meaning , objectives and list of
Indian accounting standards ( IND AS )

Module No. 2: Financial Statements of Sole Proprietors | 12

Introduction- Meaning of sole proprietor-financial statements of non-manufacturing Entities : Treading
account- Income statement / Profit and loss account-Balance sheet ; Financial statements of manufacturing
entities : manufacturing account-trading account- profit and loss account- Balance sheet

Module No. 3: Consignment Accounts \ 12

Introduction-consignment- consignment v/s sales- proforma invoice- account sales- types of commission-
Accounting for consignment transactions and events- journal entries and ledger accounts in the books of
consignor - valuation of closing stock- goods sent at cost price and invoice price.

Module No. 4:  Royalty Accounts \ 14

Introduction- meaning- types of royalty- technical terms : lessee, lesser , minimum rent, short workings and
recoupment of short workings- methods of RSW- Accounting treatment in the books of lessee — journal
entries and ledger accounts under minimum rent account method.

Module No. 5:  Emerging Trends in Accounting \ 08

Digital Transformation of Accounting-Big Data Analytics in Accounting-Cloud Computing in accounting-
Accounting with drones- Forensic Accounting- Accounting for Planet--
Creative Accounting-Outsourced Accounting- Predictive Accounting (All Theory Only).

Skill Developments Activities
1. Collect and analyze Annual Reports of sole proprietors and identify accounting concepts and conventions
followed in the preparation of the annual reports.
Collect and analyze Annual Reports of sole proprietors and identify the different components.
Preparation of Proforma invoice and accounts sales with imaginary figures.
Collect Royalty Agreements and draft royalty agreements with imaginary figures.
Identify latest innovations and developments in the field of accounting.
. Any other activities, which are relevant to the course as specified by the faculty.

SECRCPRS

Text Books
SP Iyengar (2005), Advanced Accounting, Sultan Chand & Sons, Vol. 1.

Robert N Anthony, David H, Kenneth A. M, (2017) Accounting: Text and Cases, McGraw-Hill, 13th Edition.
Charles Horngren and Donna P, (2013) Introduction to Financial Accounting, Pearson Education, 11" Edn..

[S—

J.R. Monga, Financial Accounting: Concepts and Applications. Mayur Paper Backs, New Delhi 320d Edition.
S.N. Maheshwari and. S. K. Maheshwari. Financial Accounting. Vikas, New Delhi, 6th Edition.

. B.S. Raman (2008), Financial Accounting Vol. I & II, United Publishers & Distributors

Note Latest edition of text books may be used.
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Name of the Program: Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com.)
Course Code: B.Com. 1.2
Name of the Course: Management Principles and Applications

Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

4 Credits 4 Hrs 56 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, ICT, Case studies, Group discussion, Seminar & field work etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the Students will be able to

Understand and identify the different theories of organisations, which are relevant in the present context.
Design and demonstrate the strategic plan for the attainment of organisational goals.

Differentiate the different types of authority and chose the best one in the present context.

Compare and chose the different types of motivation factors and leadership styles.

Choose the best controlling techniques for better productivity of an organisation.

o a0 o

Syllabus: Teaching Hours

Module No. 1: Introduction to Management 12

Introduction-Meaning and importance of Management-Managerial Functions- Role/Functions of Manager-
Evolution of the Management thoughts: Classical organizational theories-Neo-Classical theories-Modern
organizational theories.

Module No. 2: Planning | 10

Introduction-Meaning-Nature-Purpose-Types of plans-Planning process; Strategic planning: Concept-
Process-Importance and Limitations; Environmental Analysis and diagnosis: Meaning-importance and
Techniques (SWOT/TOWS/WOTS-UP-BCG Matrix- Competitor Analysis); Decision-making-Concept-
Importance-Committee and Group decision making Process.

Module No.3: Organizing \ 12

Introduction-Meaning-Concept and Process of Organizing — An overview-Span of management-Different
types of authority (line, staff and functional)-Decentralization- Delegation of authority; Formal and
Informal Structure-Principles of Organizing; Network Organisation Structure.

Module No. 4: Staffing and Leading \ 12

Staffing: Concept of Staffing-Staffing Process; Motivation: Concept- Importance-extrinsic and intrinsic
motivation-Major Motivation theories: Maslow’s Need- Hierarchy Theory-Hertzberg’s Two-factor
Theory-Vroom’s Expectation Theory; Leadership: Concept- Importance-Major theories of Leadership
(Likert’s scale theory, Blake and Mouten’s Managerial Grid theory, House’s Path Goal theory, Fred
Fielder’s situational Leadership), Transactional leadership, Transformational Leadership, Transforming
Leadership; Communication: Concept-purpose-process-Oral and written communication- Formal and
informal communication networks-Barriers to communication-Overcoming barriers to communication.

Module No.5:  Controlling and Coordination | 12

Control: Concept-Process-Limitations-Principles of Effective Control-Major Techniques of control — Ratio
Analysis, ROI, Budgetary Control, EVA, PERT/CPM ( Theory only) Emerging issues in Management;
Coordination: Meaning-Nature-Importance-Principles of Coordination.

Skill Development Activities
1. Collect the photographs and bio-data of any three leading contributors of management thoughts.
2. Visit any business organisation and collect the information on types of planning adopted by them.
3. Visit any business organisation and collect different types of authority followed and also the draw the
organizational structure.
4. Analyse the leadership styles of any select five companies of different sectors.
5. Visit any manufacturing firm and identify the controlling system followed.

Text Books
1. Koontz and Weihrich (2017), Essentials of Management: An International and Leadership Perspective, MHE.
2. Stephen P Robbins and Madhushree Nanda Agrawal (2009), Fundamentals of Management: Essential Concepts
and Applications, Pearson Education, 6th Edition.
3. James H. Donnelly, (1990) Fundamentals of Management, Pearson Education, 7th Edition.
4. B.P. Singh and A.K.Singh (2002), Essentials of Management, Excel Books
5. P C Tripathi & P N Reddy (2005), Principles of Management, TMH Publications, 3rd Edition.
6. Koontz Harold (2004), Essentials of Management, Tata McGraw Hill.
Note: Latest edition of text books may be used.




Name of the Program: Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com.)
Course Code: B.Com. 1.3
Name of the Course: Principles of Marketing

Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

4 Credits 4 Hrs 56 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, ICT, Case studies, Group discussion, Seminar & field work etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the Students will be able to

a.Understand the basic concepts of marketing and asses the marketing environment.

b.Analyse the consumer behaviour in the present scenario and marketing segmentation.

c.Discover the new product development and identify the factors affecting the price of a product in the
present context.

d.Judge the impact of promotional techniques on the customers & importance of channels of distribution.

e.Outline the recent developments in the field of marketing.

Syllabus: Teaching Hours

Module No. 1:  Introduction to Marketing 12

Introduction: Nature-Scope-Importance of Marketing; Concepts & Approaches of Marketing: Need-Want-
Demand-Customer Value-Customer Creation; Evolution of marketing; Selling vs Marketing; Marketing
Environment: Concept-importance-Micro and Macro Environment. Marketing Management-Meaning-
importance.

Module No. 2:  Consumer Behaviour & Market segmentation 12

Consumer Behaviour: Nature and Importance-Consumer buying decision process; Factors influencing
consumer buying behaviour; Market segmentation: Concept, importance and bases; Target market
selection-Positioning concept-Importance and bases; Product differentiation vs. market segmentation.
Marketing Mix: Product-Price-Place & Promotion.

Module No.3: Product and Pricing 12

Product: Concept and importance-Product classifications-Concept of product mix; Branding-packaging
and labelling; Product-Support Services; Product life-cycle; New Product Development Process;
Consumer adoption process. Pricing: Significance. Factors affecting price of a product. Pricing policies
and strategies.

Module No. 4: Promotion and Distribution 12

Promotion: Nature and importance of promotion; Communication process; Types of promotion:
advertising, personal selling, public relations & sales promotion, and their distinctive characteristics;
Promotion mix and factors affecting promotion mix decisions. Distribution Channels and Physical
Distribution: Channels of distribution - meaning and importance; Types of distribution channels;
Functions of middle man; Factors affecting choice of distribution channel; Wholesaling and retailing;
Types of Retailers; e-retailing, Physical Distribution.

Module No. 5: Recent Developments in Marketing 08

Social Marketing, online marketing, direct marketing, services marketing, green marketing, Rural
marketing; Consumerism, Search Engine Marketing-Mobile Marketing- Marketing Analytics-Social
Media Marketing-Email Marketing-Live Video Streaming Marketing- Network Marketing, any other
recent developments in Marketing.

Skill Development Activities
1. Analyse the marketing environment of your locality and identify need, wants & purchasing power of
customers.

. Collect consumer behaviour towards home appliances in your locality.

. Visit any organisation and collect the information towards pricing of the products.

. Visit any wholesalers/Retailers, collect the role of them in marketing.

. Identify the recent developments in the field of marketing.

. Any other activities, which are relevant to the course.
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Reference Books

M e
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Philip Kotler (2015), Principles of Marketing. 13th edition. Pearson Education.

Saxena Rajan, (2017), Marketing Management, TMH Publishing Co. Ltd. 5" Edition.

Kumar Arun & MeenakshiN (2016), Marketing Management, Vikas Publishing House, 3" Edn.

Panda Tapan (2008), Marketing Management, Excel books, New Delhi, Second Edition.

Michael, J. Etzel, Bruce J. Walker, William J Stanton and Ajay Pandit. Marketing: Concepts and Cases.
(Special Indian Edition)., McGraw Hill Education

William D. Perreault, and McCarthy, E. Jerome., Basic Marketing. Pearson Education.

Majaro, Simon. The Essence of Marketing. Pearson Education, New Delhi.

Tacobucci and Kapoor, Marketing Management: A South Asian Perspective. Cengage Learning.
Chhabra, T.N., and S. K. Grover. Marketing Management. Fourth Edition.

Note: Latest edition of text books may be used.




Name of the Program: Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com.)
Course Code: B.Com. 1.4
Name of the Course: Digital Fluency for Business

Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

2 Credits 1T+2P 28 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, ICT, Practical application, Discussion, Usage of Business Lab etc..

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the Students will be able to
a. Understand the Computer concepts and Operations
b. Design and Demonstrate the MS Office applications for Business activities

Syllabus: Teaching Hours

Module No. 1:  Basic Computer Concepts and Operations 6

Introduction, Computer in Daily activities, Computer Components, Windows — Basics, Windows
Accessories, File creation, Modification, conversion.

Module No. 2: MS WORD \ 6

Introduction , Editing a Document — Move and Copy text — Formatting text and paragraph — Finding and
Replacing text and spelling checking — Using tabs, Tables, and other features, Enhancing document — using
mail merge and other features. Preparing Business letters in MS Word

Module No. 3: MS EXCEL \ 6

Introduction, Getting started with excel — Edition Cells and using commands and functions — Moving and
Coping, Inserting and Deleting Rows and Columns — Getting help and formatting a worksheet — Printing
the worksheet — Creating Tables and Charts — using Basic mathematical formulae in excel.

Module No. 4: MS PowerPoint ‘ 4

Introduction, Menus, Home, Inserts, Design, animation, Slideshow, adding new slides, adding new text box,
rearranging slides, Creation of Business presentations

Module No. 5:  Internet Fundamentals and Application ‘ 6

Introduction, Using the Internet, Creation of e-mail, Sending mail with attachments, Using Google form,
Internet applications, E-Business activities, Internet Banking

Skill Development Activities
1. Understanding Basic computer operation
2. Design and Demonstrate the application of MS Word, MS PowerPoint and Excel
3. Internet applications for Business, E-Business,
4. Creation of Internet Banking for their own SB a/c
Note:-Students should maintain separate Lab record for practices

Reference Books
1. Rajaraman V and Adabala N, Fundamentals of Computers

Manoj Wadhwa, Fundamentals of Computers

V. Rajaraman, Fundamentals of Computers

Rohit Khurana, Learning MS-Word and MS-Excel

Step Joan Lambert, Microsoft Word 2019 Step

Richard Steve, Microsoft Word for Beginners 2021: Learn Word Processing Skills

AN

Note: Latest edition of textbooks and reference Books may be used



https://www.amazon.in/s/ref%3Ddp_byline_sr_book_1?ie=UTF8&field-author=Rajaraman%2BV&search-alias=stripbooks
https://www.amazon.in/s/ref%3Ddp_byline_sr_book_2?ie=UTF8&field-author=Adabala%2BN&search-alias=stripbooks
https://www.amazon.in/s/ref%3Ddp_byline_sr_book_1?ie=UTF8&field-author=Manoj%2BWadhwa&search-alias=stripbooks
https://www.amazon.in/s/ref%3Ddp_byline_sr_book_1?ie=UTF8&field-author=Rohit%2BKhurana&search-alias=stripbooks
https://www.amazon.in/Joan-Lambert/e/B002BLUADS/ref%3Ddp_byline_cont_book_1
https://www.amazon.com/s/ref%3Ddp_byline_sr_book_1?ie=UTF8&field-author=RICHARD%2BSTEVE&text=RICHARD%2BSTEVE&sort=relevancerank&search-alias=books
https://www.amazon.com/s/ref%3Ddp_byline_sr_book_1?ie=UTF8&field-author=RICHARD%2BSTEVE&text=RICHARD%2BSTEVE&sort=relevancerank&search-alias=books

Name of the Program: Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com)
Course Code: B.Com. 1.5 (Open Elective Course)
Name of the Course: Accounting for Everyone

Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

3 Credits 3 Hrs 42 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Group discussion, Seminar & field work etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the Students will be able to

Analyse various terms used in accounting;

Make accounting entries and prepare cash book and necessary accounts while running a business;
Prepare accounting equation of various business transactions;

Analyse information from company's annual report;

Comprehend the management reports of the company.

®po TP

Syllabus Teaching Hours

Module No. 1: Introduction to Accounting 08

Meaning, Importance and Need, Its objectives and relevance to business establishments and other
organizations, and individuals. Accounting information: meaning, users and utilities, sources of accounting
information. Some Basic Terms —Transaction, Account, Asset, Liability, Capital, Expenditure & Expense,
Income, Revenue, Gain, Profit, Surplus, Loss, Deficit. Debit, Credit, Accounting Year, Financial Year.

Module No. 2: Transactions and Recording of Transactions ‘ 08

Features of recordable transactions and events, Basis of recording — vouchers and another basis. Recording
of transactions: Personal account, Real Account and Nominal Account; Rules for Debit and Credit; Double
Entry System, journalizing transactions; Preparation of Ledger, Cash Book including bank transactions.
(Simple Problems)

Module No. 3:  Preparation of Financial Statements ‘ 10

Fundamental Accounting Equation; Concept of revenue and Capital; Preparation of financial statements.
(Simple problems)

Module No. 4: Company Accounts \ 08

Explanation of certain terms — Public Limited Company, Private Limited Company, Share, Share Capital,
Shareholder, Board of Directors, Stock Exchange, Listed Company, Share Price, Sensex - BSE, NSE;
Annual report, etc. Contents and disclosures in Annual Report, Company Balance Sheet and Statement of
Profit and Loss. Content Analysis based on annual report including textual analysis.

Module 5: Management Reports \ 08

Reports on Management Review and Governance; Report of Board of Directors - Management discussion
analysis- Annual Report on CSR — Business responsibility report — Corporate governance report —
Secretarial audit report.

Skill Development Activities
1. Download annual reports of business Organisations from the websites and go through the contents of the annual
report and present the salient features of the annual report using some ratios and content analysis including
textual analysis.

. Prepare accounting equation by collecting necessary data from medium sized firm.

. Prepare financial statements collecting necessary data from small business firms.

. Collect the management reports of any large scale organisation and analyse the same.
. Any other activities, which are relevant to the course.

Dok Wi

ext Books

. Hatfield, L. (2019). Accounting Basics. Amazon Digital Services LLC.

. Horngren, Sundem, Elliott, & Philbrick (2013) Introduction to Financial Accounting. London: Pearson Education.
. Siddiqui, S. A. (2008). Book Keeping & Accountancy. New Delhi: Laxmi Publications Pvt. Ltd.

. Sehgal, D. (2014). Financial Accounting. New Delhi: Vikas Publishing House Pvt. Ltd.

. Tulsian, P. C. (2007). Financial Accounting. New Delhi: Tata McGraw Hill Publishing Co. Ltd.

. Mukharji, A., & Hanif, M. (2015). Financial Accounting. New Delhi: Tata McGraw Hill Publishing Co. Ltd.
. Maheshwari, S. N. and Maheshwari, S. K (2018). Financial Accounting. Vikas Publishing House Pvt. Ltd.

. Khan, M.Y. and Jain, P.K. Management Accounting. McGraw Hill Education.

. Arora, M.N. Management Accounting, Vikas Publishing House, New Delhi

Note Latest edition of text books may be used.
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Name of the Program: Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com)
Course Code: B.Com. 1.5 (Open Elective Course)
Name of the Course: Financial Literacy

Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

3 Credits 3 Hrs 42 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Group discussion, Seminar & field work etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the Students will be able to

a. Describe the importance of financial literacy and list out the institutions providing financial services;
b. Prepare financial plan and budget and manage personal finances;

c. Open, avail, and manage/operate services offered by banks;

d. Open, avail, and manage/operate services offered by post offices;

e. Plan for life insurance and property insurance & select instrument for investment in shares

Syllabus Teaching Hours

Module No. 1: Introduction 07

Meaning, importance and scope of financial literacy; Prerequisites of Financial Literacy — level of
education, numerical and communication ability; Various financial institutions — Banks, Insurance
companies, Post Offices; Mobile App based services. Need of availing of financial services from banks,
insurance companies and postal services.

Module No. 2: Financial Planning and Budgeting 07

Concept of economic wants and means for satisfying these needs; Balancing between economic wants and
resources; Meaning, importance and need for financial planning; Personal Budget, Family Budget,
Business Budget and National Budget; Procedure for financial planning and preparing budget; Budget
surplus and Budget deficit, avenues for savings from surplus, sources for meeting deficit.

Module No. 3:  Banking Services 10

Types of banks; Banking products and services — Various services offered by banks; Types of bank
deposit accounts — Savings Bank Account, Term Deposit, Current Account, Recurring Deposit, PPF, NSC
etc.; Formalities to open various types of bank accounts, PAN Card, Address proof, KYC norm; Various
types of loans — short term, medium term, long term, micro finance, agricultural etc. and related interest
rates offered by various nationalized banks and post office; Cashless banking, e-banking, Check
Counterfeit Currency; CIBIL, ATM, Debit and Credit Card, and APP based Payment system; Banking
complaints and Ombudsman.

Module No. 4: Financial Services from Post Office ‘ 08

Post office Savings Schemes: Savings Bank, Recurring Deposit, Term Deposit, Monthly Income Scheme,
Kishan Vikas Patra, NSC, PPF, Senior Citizen Savings Scheme (SCSS), Sukanya Samriddhi Yojana/
Account (SSY/SSA); India Post Payments Bank (IPPB). Money Transfer: Money Order, E-Money order.
Instant Money Order, collaboration with the Western Union Financial Services; MO Videsh, International
Money Transfer Service, Electronic Clearance Services (ECS), Money gram International Money Transfer,
Indian Postal Order (IPO).

Module 5: Protection and Investment Related Financial Services 10

Insurance Services: Life Insurance Policies: Life insurance, term-life insurance, Endowment Policies,
Pension Policies, ULIP, Health Insurance and its Plans, Comparison of policies offered by various life
insurance companies. Property Insurance: Policies offered by various general insurance companies. Post
office life Insurance Schemes: Postal Life Insurance and Rural Postal Life Insurance (PLI/RPLI). Housing
Loans: Institutions providing housing loans, Loans under Pradhanmantri Awas Yojana — Rural and Urban.
Investment avenues in Equity and Debt Instruments: Portfolio Management: Meaning and importance;
Share Market and Debt Market, Sensex and its significance; Investment in Shares — selection procedure for
investment in shares; Risk element; Investment Management - Services from brokers and Institutions, and
self-management; Mutual Fund.




Skill Development Activities

1.

5.

Visit banks, post offices, and insurance companies to collect information and required documents
related to the services offered by these institutions and to know the procedure of availing of these
services.

. Fill up the forms to open accounts and to avail loans and shall attach photocopies of necessary

documents.

. Prepare personal and family budget for one/six/ twelve month on imaginary figures.
. Try to open Demat account and trade for small amount and submit the report on procedure on opening

of Demat account and factors considered for trading.
Any other activities, which are relevant to the course.

Text Books

1.
2.
3.

6.

Avadhani, V. A. (2019). Investment Management. Mumbai: Himalaya Publishing House Pvt. Ltd.
Chandra, P. (2012). Investment Game: How to Win. New Delhi: Tata McGraw Hill Education.
Kothari, R. (2010). Financial Services in India-Concept and Application. Sage Publications India Pvt.
Ltd.

. Milling, B. E. (2003). The Basics of Finance: Financial Tools for Non-Financial Managers.

Indiana: Universe Company.

. Mittra, S., Rai, S. K., Sahu, A. P., & Starn, H. J. (2015). Financial Planning. Sage Publications India Pvt.

Ltd.
Zokaityte, A. (2017). Financial Literacy Education. London: Palgrave Macmillan.

Note: Latest edition of text books may be used.




Name of the Program: Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com)
Course Code: B.Com. 1.5 (Open Elective Course)
Name of the Course: Event Management

Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

3 Credits 3 Hrs 42 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Group discussion, Seminar & field work etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the Students will be able to

1. Describe the key elements involved in event management and event marketing.

2. Evaluate the application of marketing mix while designing the Event management activities of event of
diverse nature.

3. Plan for the procedure in getting certifications and other related government regulations to be observed for a
hypothetical event management process.

4. Identify the event management pre, during and post event activities onthe basis of nature of event.

5. Formulate the strategic market planning to plan, assess, analyse, implement, control and evaluate the
activities of different events

6. Illustrate the role of Event Manager in managing successful events in the wake of recent trends in event
management industry.

Syllabus Teaching Hours

Module 1 - Introduction to Events 10

Definition of Events - Event management, Event Marketing, 5 ¢’s of events, Event designing. Why
Events? — Events as a marketing tool, The diverse marketing needs addressed by events, Brand
Building, Focusing the Target market, Implementation of Marketing Plan, Marketing Research,
Advantages offered by events. Key elements of Events Event Infrastructure - Core Concept, Core
People, Core Talent, Core structure. Target Audience, Clients, Event organizers, Venue, Media.
Feasibility — Keys to success, The SWOT Analysis.

Module 2 — Event Marketing ‘ 12

Understanding the Event Market — Concept of market in Events, Segmentation and targeting of the
market, positioning and the concept of event property Concept of Product in Events- Event
Hierarchy, categories and variations of events and their characteristics (Conferences, Conventions,
Trade Fairs, Expos, Product Launch, Entertainment shows, Sports Events). Concept of pricing in
Events - Risk Rating, Setting Pricing Objectives in tune with Marketing and business strategies,
Assessment of Internal systems and overheads, checklist of pricing of events Concept of Promotion in
Events - Networking Components, Print media, radio, television, The Internet, Outdoor Media, Direct
Marketing,Public Relations, Merchandising, In-Venue publicity, Sponsorships.

Module 3 - Legal Compliance related to Events 04

Licensing, Certifications and the other Governmental Regulations.

Module 4 — Event Management 08

Event Management - Activities in Event Management — Pre event Activities, During Event Activities,
Post Event Activities. Planning, Organizing, Staffing, Leading and Coordination, Controlling, Event
Management Information System- Protocol, staging, operations and logistics, safety and security,
crowd management.

Module 5 — Strategic Market Planning 08

Setting Objectives, Development of the strategic Market plan, Environment Assessment, Competitive
Assessment, and Business Potential assessment, Problem Analysis, Opportunity and Resource
Analysis. Monitoring, Control and Evaluation of Events — Monitoring and control systems, Basic
evaluation process, Measuring Performance, Correcting Deviations, and Critical Evaluation Points.




Skill Development Activities

(These activities are only indicative, the Faculty member can innovate)

1. Participate as a volunteer in any event conducted by an Event Management Company and identify the
various career opportunities inthe industry today
Create groups and conduct small events in your own class.
Create and conduct an event within campus.
Draft your unique Event Plan for a famous event that takes place in India.

PIPSVIN

. Any other activities, which are relevant to the course.

Text Books

1. Hoshi Bhiwandiwala (2017). Event Management , Nirali Prakashan
2. WAGEN, (2005). Event Management, Pearson Education.

Anukrati Sharma and Shruti Arora (2018). Event Management and Marketing: Theory, Practical
Approaches and Planning, Bharti Publications

4. Judy Allen, ()Event Planning: The Ultimate Guide to Successful Meetings, Corporate Events,
Fundraising Galas, etc., Wiley publishing House

Note: Latest edition of text books may be used.



https://www.amazon.in/s/ref=dp_byline_sr_book_1?ie=UTF8&field-author=Hoshi+Bhiwandiwala&search-alias=stripbooks
https://www.amazon.in/s/ref=dp_byline_sr_book_1?ie=UTF8&field-author=WAGEN&search-alias=stripbooks

Name of the Program: Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com)
Course Code: B.Com. 1.5 (Open Elective Course)
Name of the Course: Gender and Leadership

Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

3 Credits 3 Hrs 42 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Group discussion, Seminar & field work etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the Students will be able to

a. Describe the leadership in the context of gender, race and cultural dynamics of in an organizational
set up.

b. Relate the gender in leadership with gender theories, gender identity and related behavior in the
historical and contemporary context.

c. Illustrate the challenges and new initiatives for empowering the discriminated genders for
leadership.

d. Work for the ways and means of navigating the challenges and limitations of gender
identity in business, corporate and politics

e. Design the strategies to establish work life balance and obliterate gender differences.

f. Develop the strategies adopted by women to advance herself to leadership position.
Syllabus Teaching Hours

Modulel - Leadership, Gender & Stereotypes 08

Leadership principles and vision, defining the strengths and roles of a leader, outlining the concept of
gender- Understanding the relationship of Gender and Leadership- Leadership Labyrinth — Gender, race
and cultural dynamics in an organizational set up- Exploring leadership through the context of
power, authority and advancement- The power dynamics of women and men at a work place;
Gender Identity as a tool for evaluation of competence.

Module 2 - An Outlook on Gender in Leadership 10

Psychological, biological and personality differences in men and women accounting to their position
of leadership- Exploring gender theories, gender identity and related behaviour in the historical and
contemporary context- Understanding the context of women and leadership in the historical
background- in politics, business, media, literature, and cinema and in other setups- Analysis of
policies and practices supporting gender equity. Interrogating the current status of women in
leadership roles.

Module 3 - Issues and New Initiatives 08

Challenges, barrier, constraints, and opportunities for women in leadership positions- Gendered inequities
in organizations and the treatment of men and women in a work place. Understanding of gendered
differences in job categories, gendered differences in compensation and gendered differences in
professional opportunities- Insight into the creation of large public place for transsexual and transgender-
Avenues and Initiative for transgender leadership. Reflecting on the leadership tools to empower the
discriminated and enriching the gender.

Module 4 - Surpassing the work / life dichotomies 08

Developing an understanding work/ life balance in Organization and in contemporary business issue.
Definition of success and setting career goals- The moral and ethical dimension of leadership roles-
Generational variance in leadership positions- Examining the causes, problems of work/life imbalance.
Identifying strategies to establish a work/ life balance. Gender difference and work life balance issues.
Organization’s attitude to men and women at work- Steps taken in obliterating gender differences and
creating a conducive work environment.

Module 5 - Personal philosophies and style in leadership 08

Developing yourself and others for leadership roles- Understanding the various kind of leadership roles and
styles - authoritarian, laissez-fair, transactional, transformational and democratic. Sharing professional and
personal experiences- Strategies to advance women to leadership positions- Men and Women in Corporate
leadership- status and prospects- Distorting gender based roles and improving leadership performances.




Skill Development Activities
(These activities are only indicative, the Faculty member can innovate)

1.
2.

Prepare a comprehensive report on emerging trends in leadership.

Deliberate about projects, assignments, case study, response papers, and presentations - that explores
strategies and leadership for change.

Conduct interactive exercises, conducting interviews, field trips, documentary films, writing research
papers guest speakers, and debates.

Conduct any other activity with an aim to develop Articulation Skills of students

Books for Reference

1.

Mary S. Hartman; Talking Leadership: Conversations with Powerful Women; New Jersey
Rutgers University Press 1999.

Virginia Valian; Why so slow? -The Advancement of Women Boston;MIT Press; 1997.

Marie C; Wilson; Closing the Leadership Gap: Add Women, Change Everything London
Penguin Books 2007.

Peter Guy; Northouse Leadership: Theory and Practice; 7th; New York SAGE Publications, Inc
201.5.

Alice Eagly and Wendy Wood; The origins of sex differences in human behavior: Evolved
dispositions versus social roles; 1999.




Name of the Program: Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com)
Course Code: B.Com. 1.5 (Open Elective Course)
Name of the Course: Travel Agency and Tour Operations

Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

3 Credits 3 Hrs 42 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Group discussion, Seminar & field work etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the Students will be able to

a. Illustrate the role and functions of travel agencies and tour operators.

b. Compare and contrast non-commission system and commission system of travel agents and its recent
trends.

c. Describe the terminologies connected with Travel and rules and regulations applicable to Travel Agencies
and tour operators.

d. Choose a minimum of two major tourism destinations for each country studied.

e. Develop a tour itinerary plan taking all essential components of tour itinerary.

f. f. Estimate cost of tour itinerary taking all the components of package tour.

Syllabus Teaching Hours

Module 1- Role of Travel Agency and Tour Operation 08

Travel agent, meaning and its importance- Types of travel agencies, Classification of travel agency.
Functions of travel agencies, setting up of travel agencies, IATA accreditation, Roles, functions and
importance of — TAAI, TAFI, IATO, UFTAA, ASTA.- Objectives, roles & functions - Sources of income
for a travel agency, Inbound/ Outbound Tour operator — meaning, types, Role of tour operators in growth of
tourism industry. Package tours-meaning and types of package tour

Module 2 — Emerging Trends in Travel Agency | 06

Current Changes in the commission system for travel agent, Generalist to Specialist, Travel agent to
consultant level, Advantages in selling with non- commission system, its comparison with commission
system, Selling Cycle.

Module 3 — Tour Itinerary Planning \ 10

Components of Itinerary, Flight Itinerary, Tours Itinerary, inbound Travel Management, Department of
travel and market trends existing in travel, development of itineraries, steps after Itinerary is finalized,
Guest handing and organizing special events.

Module 4 — Tour Costing | 10

Costing of Tour itinerary, packaging of tour itinerary, sample itineraries, Tour Production, Steps of Tour
development, Selecting tour components, Identifying the benefits of Tour, Tour documents, Tour pricing
sales, Tour promotion, Tour packages and group travel, Group tours cost, case study

Module 5 — Travel Essentials and Regulations \ 08

Travel Terminology, Codes — 2 Letter Codes, 3 Letter Codes, 4 Letter Codes, Reservation & Message
Codes, Miscellaneous Terminology & Definitions, Concepts-meaning and scope-issues of Passports, Visa,
foreign exchange, Health regulations for international travel, Special permits for restricted areas, Customs
regulation, Emigration & immigration, Taxes paid by travelers, Travel insurance.

Skill Development Activities

(These activities are only indicative, the Faculty member can innovate)

Visit various tourism boards in Bangalore and prepare a presentation.

Prepare a tour itinerary considering all the essential component required

Make a presentation on Incredible India.

Visit various travel agencies/ tour operators to gain information on their operations and prepare a project report.
Arrange for a guest lecture from a tour operator.

. Conduct any other activity with an aim to develop Articulation Skills of students

R N N

Books for Reference
1. A.K Bhatia Tourism development, principles and practices; Noida ; Sterling Publishers Pvt., 2012
2. Maneed Kumar; Tourism Today
3. IATA; Travel and Tourism Management
4. WTO Travel & Tourism management
5. West Wind Aviation Academy Travel & Tourism management; Arizona, USA




B. Scheme of Teaching and Evaluation B.Com (Basic/Hons)

Second Semester
Teaching
SL Course Title of the Course Category | Hours per | SEE | CIE| Total | Credits
No. Code of Courses Week Marks
(L+T+P)
10 | Lang.2.1 Language — I AECC 3+1+0 60 40 [ 100 3
11 | Lang.2.2 Language — II AECC 3+1+0 60 40 [ 100 3
12 B.Com.2.1 | Advanced Financial DSC 3+0+2 60 40 | 100 4
Accounting
= B.Com.2.2 [ Business Mathematics OR DSC 3+0+2/ | 60 40 | 100 4
Corporate Administration 4+0+0
14 | B.Com.2.3 |Law & Practice of Banking DSC 4+0+0 60 40 | 100 4
15 | B.Com.2.4 | Environmental Studies AECC 3+0+0 30 20 50 2
OEC:
16 B.Com.2.5 Financial Environment OEC 3+0+0 60 40 100 3
OR
Investing in Stock Markets
OR
Human Capital Management
OR
Stress Management
OR
Rural Marketing
17 Sports SEC-VB | 0+0+2 25 25 1
18 NCC/NSS/R&R(S&G )/ SEC-VB | 0+0+2 25 25 1
Cultural
Sub —Total (B) 390 | 310 | 700 25

Acronyms Used

o O O O O O O O

AECC : Ability Enhancement Compulsory Course
DSC : Discipline Specific Core (Course)
SEC-SB/VB : Skill Enhancement Course-Skill Based/Value Based

OEC : Open Elective Course
DSE : Discipline Specific Elective

SEE : Semester End Examination

CIE : Continuous Internal Evaluation
L+T+P : Lecture+Tutorial+Practical(s)

Note: Practical Classes may be conducted in the Business Lab or in Computer Lab or in Class room depending on the

requirement. One batch of students should not exceed half (i.e., 50 or less than 50 students) of the number of

students in each class/section. 2 Hours of Practical Class is equal to 1 Hour of Teaching, however, whenever it is

conducted for the entire class (i.e., more than 50 students) 2 Hours of Practical Class is equal to 2 Hours of

Teaching.




Name of the Program: Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com.)
Course Code: B.Com. 2.1
Name of the Course: Advanced Financial Accounting

Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

4 Credits 3+0+2 Hrs 56 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Tutorial classes, Group discussion, Seminar & field work etc.

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the Students will be able to
a. Understand & compute the amount of claims for loss of stock & loss of Profit.

Learn various methods of accounting for hire purchase transactions.

Deal with the inter-departmental transfers and their accounting treatment.

Demonstrate various accounting treatments for dependent & independent branches.

Prepare financial statements from incomplete records.

o a0 o

Syllabus: Hours

Module 1:Insurance Claims for Loss of Stock & Loss of Profit 10

Introduction — Meaning of fire insurance — Treatment of salvage, cost of extinguishing of fire, Normal loss and
abnormal loss — application of average clause — Preparation of statement of claim.

Module No. 2: Hire Purchase Accounting ‘ 10

Introduction — Meaning features — terms used — Accounting methods — Analytical table to calculate cash price,
Interest and Installments— Preparation of journal and ledgers in the books of buyer under assets accrual method.

Module No. 3: Departmental Accounts ‘ 12

Introduction — Meaning — Advantages and Disadvantages — Methods of departmental accounting. Basis of
allocation of common expenditures among different departments — Types of departments — Inter departmental
transfer; at cost price and at invoice price.

Module No. 4: Accounting for Branches 12

Introduction—Difference between branch and departmental accounts—Types of branches; Dependent branches,
Independent branches and foreign branches—Accounting methods—Preparation of journal and ledger accounts
in the books of head office, under debtors system and final accounts system at cost price and at invoice price,
problems on dependent branches only—Techniques for foreign currency transaction (Theory only)

Module No. 5: Conversion of Single Entry into Double Entry ‘ 12

Introduction: Meaning — Limitations of single entry system — Differences between single entry system and
double entry system. Problems on conversion of single entry system into double entry system.

Skill Developments Activities:

Identify the procedure & documentations involved in the insurance claims.

Collect hire purchase agreements and draft dummy hire purchase agreements with imaginary figures.
Identify the common expenditures of an organisation among various departments.

Collect the procedure and documentations involved in the establishment of various branches.

M

Visit any sole proprietor firm and identify the steps involved in the conversion of single entry into double entry
system.
6. Any other activities, which are relevant to the course.

Text Books:

1. ICAI Study Materials on Principles & Practice of Accounting, Accounting and Advanced Accounting.

2. SP Iyengar (2005), Advanced Accounting, Sultan Chand & Sons, Vol. 1.

3. Robert N Anthony, David Hawkins, Kenneth A. Merchant, (2017) Accounting: Text and Cases, McGraw-Hill
Education, 13th Edition.

4. Charles T. Horngren and Donna Philbrick, (2013) Introduction to Financial Accounting, Pearson Education,

11th Edition.

J.R. Monga, Financial Accounting: Concepts and Applications. Mayur Paper Backs, New Delhi, 32nd Edition.

6. S.N. Maheshwari, and. S. K. Maheshwari. Financial Accounting. Vikas Publishing House, New Delhi, 6th
Edition.

7. B.S. Raman (2008), Financial Accounting Vol. I & II, United Publishers & Distributors

8. Compendium of Statements and Standards of Accounting. The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
New Delhi.

Note: Latest edition of text books may be used.
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Name of the Program: Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com.)
Course Code: B.Com. 2.2
Name of the Course: Business Mathematics

Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

4 Credits 3+0+2 Hrs 56 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Tutorial classes, Group discussion, Seminar & field work etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the Students will be able to
a  Understand the number system and indices applications in solving basic business problems.
b Apply concept of commercial arithmetic concepts to solve business problems.
¢. Make use of theory of equation in solving the business problems in the present context.
d Understand and apply the concepts of Set Theory, Permutations & Combinations and Matrices solving
business problems.
e.  Apply measurement of solids in solving simple business problems.

Syllabus: Hours

Module No. 1: Number System and Indices 12

Introduction:Meaning-Natural Numbers-Even & Odd Numbers - Prime, Rational Number and its features &
Irrational Numbers - simple problems on finding sum of natural, Odd and Even numbers- HCF and LCM,
problems thereon. Indices-Introduction, Laws of indices, application of laws for simplification, simple
problems.

Module No. 2: Commercial Mathematics | 12

Introduction - Meaning of Simple and Compound interest and problems thereon, - Annuities, types & problems
on present and future value of annuity; Ratios and Proportions-meaning and problems thereon-problems on
speed, time and work.

Module No. 3: Theory of Equation | 10

Introduction - Meaning-Problems on Linear equations and solving pure and affected quadratic equations
(factor and Sridharacharya methods only), problems on Simultaneous equations (Elimination method only).

Module No. 4:Set Theory, Permutations & Combinations and Matrices | 12

Introduction - Meaning & types of sets-Laws of Sets-Venn diagram-problems thereon; Meaning and problems
on permutations and combinations; Matrices-Meaning & types of Matrices, simple problems on addition,
subtraction and multiplication.

Module No. 5: Progressions ‘ 10

Introduction, Meaning of Arithmetic Progression (A.P.), nth term of an Arithmetic progression Geometric
Progression (G.P.), and sum of the number of terms in Arithmetic progression and Geometric progression.
Harmonic Progression (H.P.) — Meaning only. Problems on AP and GP only

Skill Developments Activities:
Show the number of ways in which your telephone number can be arranged to get odd numbers.
Visit any Commercial Bank in your area and collect the information about types of loans and the rates of interest on loans.
Use Matrix principles to implement food requirement and protein for two families.
Measure your classroom with the help of a tape and find the cost of the carpet for the floor area of the classroom.
. Any other activities, which are relevant to the course.
Text Books:
Saha and Rama Rao, Business Mathematics, HPH.
S.N.Dorairaj, Business Mathematics, United Publication.
R. Gupta, Mathematics for Cost Accountants.
S. P. Gupta, Business Mathematics.
Madappa and Sridhara Rao, Business Mathematics.
Padmalochana Hazarika, Business Mathematics.
B.H.Suresh, Quantitative Techniques, Chetana Book House.
Padmalochan Hazarika, A Textbook of Business Mathematics, S. Chand, New Delhi, No. 4, 2016.
. A.P. Verma, Business Mathematics, Asian Books Private Limited, New Delhi, No. 3, January 2007.
10. D. C. Sancheti & V. K. Kapoor, Business Mathematics, S. Chand, New Delhi, 2014
11. A Lenin Jothi, Financial Mathematics, Himalaya Publications, Mumbai, No. 1, 20009.
12. B. M. Aggarwal, Business Mathematics, Ane Books Pvt. Ltd., No. 5, 2015
Note: Latest edition of text books may be used.
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Name of the Program: Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com.)
Course Code: B.Com. 2.2
Name of the Course: Corporate Administration

Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

4 Credits 4 Hrs 56 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, ICT, Case studies, Group discussion, Seminar & field work etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the Students will be able to

a. Understand the framework of Companies Act of 2013 and different kind of companies.
b. Identify the stages and documents involved in the formation of companies in India.
c. Analyse the role, responsibilities and functions of Key management Personnel in Corporate Administration.
d. Examine the procedure involved in the corporate meeting and the role of company secretary in the meeting.
e. Evaluate the role of liquidator in the process of winding up of the company.
Syllabus: Hours
Module No. 1: Introduction to Company 12

Introduction - Meaning and Definition — Features — Highlights of Companies Act 2013 - - Kinds of
Companies — One Person Company-Private Company-Public Company- Company limited by Guarantee-
Company limited by Shares- Holding Company- Subsidiary Company-Government Company-Associate
Company- Small Company-Foreign Company-Global Company-Body Corporate-Listed Company.

Module No. 2: Formation of Companies 12

Introduction - Promotion Stage: Meaning of Promoter, Position of Promoter & Functions of Promoter,
Incorporation Stage: Meaning & contents of Memorandum of Association & Articles of Association,
Distinction between Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association, Certificate of Incorporation,
Subscription Stage — Meaning & contents of Prospectus, Statement in lieu of Prospects and Book Building,
Commencement Stage — Document to be filed, e-filing, Register of Companies, Certificate of
Commencement of Business; Formation of Global Companies: Meaning — Types —Features — Legal
Formalities—Administration.

Module No. 3: Company Administration ‘ 12

Introduction - Key Managerial Personnel — Managing Director, Whole time Directors, the Companies
Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Resident Director, Independent Director, Auditors — Appointment —
Powers - Duties & Responsibilities. Managing Director — Appointment — Powers — Duties & Responsibilities.
Audit Committee, CSR Committee. Company Secretary - Meaning, Types, Qualification, Appointment,
Position, Rights, Duties, Liabilities & Removal or dismissal.

Module No. 4: Corporate Meetings ‘ 10

Introduction - Corporate meetings: types — Importance - Distinction; Resolutions: Types — Distinction;
Requisites of a valid meeting — Notice — Quorum —Proxies - Voting - Registration of resolutions; Role of a
company secretary in convening the meetings.

Module No. 5: Winding Up | 10

Introduction — Meaning- Modes of Winding up —Consequence of Winding up — Official
Liquidator — Role & Responsibilities of Liquidator — Defunct Company — Insolvency Code.

Skill Development Activities:

1. Collect the Companies Act 2013 from the Ministry of Corporate Affairs website and prepare the highlights of the same.
2. Visit any Registrar of the Companies; find out the procedure involved in the formation of the companies.

3. Visit any Company and discuss with Directors of the same on role and responsibilities and prepare report on the same.
4. Collect the copy of notice of the Meeting and Resolutions, Prepare the dummy copy of Notice and resolutions.

5. Contact any official liquidator of an organisation and discuss the procedure involved on the same and prepare report.
6. Any other activities, which are relevant to the course.

Text Books:

S.N Maheshwari, Elements of Corporate Law, HPH.

Balchandran, Business Law for Management, HPH

P.N. Reddy and H.R. Appanaiah, Essentials of Company Law and Secretarial Practice, HPH.
K. Venkataramana, Corporate Administration, SHBP.

N.D. Kapoor: Company Law and Secretarial Practice, Sultan Chand.

M.C. Bhandari, Guide to Company Law Procedures, Wadhwa Publication.

S.C. Kuchal, Company Law and Secretarial Practice.

. S.C. Sharm, Business Law, I.K. International Publishers

Note: Latest edition of text books may be used.
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Name of the Program: Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com.)
Course Code: B.Com. 2.3
Name of the Course: Law and Practice of Banking

Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

4 Credits 4 Hrs 56 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, ICT, Case studies, Group discussion, Seminar & field work etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the Students will be able to

a. Summarize the relationship between Banker & customer and different types of functions of banker.
b. Analyse the role, functions and duties of paying and collecting banker.

c. Make use of the procedure involved in opening and operating different accounts.

d. Examine the different types of negotiable instrument & their relevance in the present context.

e. Estimate possible developments in the banking sector in the upcoming days.

Syllabus: Hours

Module No. 1: Introduction to Banking 12

Introduction- Meaning — Need — Importance — Primary, Secondary & Modern functions of banks - Origin of
banking- Banker and Customer Relationship (General and special relationship) - Origin and growth of
commercial banks in India — Types of Banks in India—Banks’ Lending - changing role of commercial banks.
RBI: History-Role & Functions.

Module No. 2: Paying and Collecting Banker ‘ 12

Paying banker: Introduction - Meaning — Role — Functions - Duties - Precautions and Statutory Protection
and rights - Dishonor of Cheques — Grounds of Dishonor — Consequences of wrongful dishonor of Cheques;
Collecting Banker: Introduction - Meaning — Legal status of collecting banker - Holder for value -
Holder in due course—Duties & Responsibilities - Precautions and Statutory Protection to Collecting Banker.

Module No. 3: Customers and Account Holders 10

Introduction - Types of Customers and Account Holders - Procedure and Practice in opening and operating
accounts of different customers: Minors - Joint Account Holders- Partnership Firms - Joint Stock companies -
Executors and Trustees - Clubs and Associations and Joint Hindu Undivided Family.

Module No. 4: Negotiable Instruments 12

Introduction — Meaning & Definition — Features — Kinds of Negotiable Instruments: Promissory Notes - Bills
of Exchange - Cheques - Crossing of Cheques — Types of Crossing; Endorsements: Introduction - Meaning -
Essentials & Kinds of Endorsement — Rules of endorsement.

Module No. 5: Recent Developments in Banking 10

Introduction - New technology in Banking — E-services — Debit and Credit cards - Internet Banking-
Electronic Fund Transfer- MICR — RTGS - NEFT —ECS- Small banks-Payment banks- UPI, Digital Wallet-
Crypto currency- KYC norms — Basel Norms - Mobile banking-E-payments. Recent development in the
banking sector.

Skill Development Activities:

1. Refer RBI website and identify the different types of banks operating in India.

2. Visit any Public sector bank & discuss with the branch manager about the role and functions as a paying and collecting
banker.

Collect and fill the account opening forms as different types of customer.

Demonstrate online banking services, Transact with the UPI payments

Draft specimen of Negotiable instruments: bill of exchange, Promissory Notes and Cheques.

Identify and prepare report on pros and cons of recent development in the field of banking sector.

. Any other activities, which are relevant to the course.

N LA W

Text Books:

Gordon & Natarajan, Banking Theory Law and Practice, HPH, 24 Edition

S. P Srivastava ( 2016), Banking Theory & Practice, Anmol Publications

Maheshwari. S.N. (2014), Banking Law and Practice, Kalyani Publishers, 11 edition

Shekar. K.C (2013), Banking Theory Law and Practice, Vikas Publication, 218t Edition.
5. Dr. Alice Mani (2015), Banking Law and Operation, SBH.

Note: Latest edition of text books may be used.
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Name of the Program: Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com.)
Course Code: B.Com. 2.4
Name of the Course: Environmental Studies

Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours
2 Credits 3 Hrs 45Hrs
Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Tutorial classes, Group discussion, Seminar & field work etc.,
Syllabus: Hours
Unit 1 Introduction to Environmental Studies: 02

Introduction to Environmental Studies: Multidisciplinary nature of environmental studies. Scope and
importance; Concept of sustainability and sustainable development.

Unit 2 Ecosystems \ 06

Ecosystems: What is an ecosystem? Structure and function of ecosystem; Energy flow in an ecosystem:
food chains, food webs and ecological succession. Case studies of the following ecosystems:

a) Forest ecosystem, b) Grassland ecosystem, c¢) Desert ecosystem,
Aquatic ecosystems (ponds, streams, lakes, rivers, oceans, estuaries)
Unit 3 Natural Resources: \ 08

Natural Resources: Renewable and Non-Renewable Resources: Land resources and land-use change;
Land degradation, soil erosion and desertification. Deforestation: Causes and impacts due to mining, dam
building on environment, forests, biodiversity and tribal populations. Water: Use and over-exploitation of
surface and ground water, floods, droughts, conflicts over water (international & inter-state). Energy
resources: Renewable and non-renewable energy sources, use of alternate energy sources, growing energy
needs, case studies.

Unit 4 Biodiversity and Conservation: \ 08

Biodiversity and Conservation: Levels of biological diversity: Genetic, species and ecosystem diversity;
Biogeographic zones of India; Biodiversity patterns and global biodiversity hot spots. India as a mega-
biodiversity nation; Endangered and endemic species of India. Threats to biodiversity: Habitat loss,
poaching of wildlife, man-wildlife conflicts, biological invasions; Conservation of biodiversity: In-situ
and Ex-situ conservation of biodiversity. Ecosystem and biodiversity services: Ecological, economic,
social, ethical, aesthetic and Informational value.

Unit 5 Environmental Pollution | 08

Environmental Pollution: Environmental pollution: types, causes, effects and controls; Air, water, soil
and noise pollution. Nuclear hazards and human health risks. Solid waste management, Control
measures of urban and industrial waste Pollution case studies.

Unit 6 Environmental Policies & Practices | 07

Environmental Policies & Practices: Climate change, global warming, ozone layer depletion, acid rain
and impacts on human communities and agriculture. Environment Laws: Environment Protection Act;
Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act; Water (Prevention and control of Pollution) Act; Wildlife
Protection Act; Forest Conservation Act. International agreements: Montreal and Kyoto protocols and
Convention on Biological Diversity (CBD). Nature reserves, tribal populations and rights, and human
wildlife conflicts in Indian context

Unit 7 Human Communities and the Environment | 06

Human Communities and the Environment: Human population growth: Impacts on environment,
human health and welfare. Resettlement and rehabilitation of project affected persons; case studies.
Disaster management: floods, earthquake, cyclones and landslides. Environmental movements:
Chipko, Silent valley, Bishnois of Rajasthan. Environmental ethics: Role of Indian and other religions
and cultures in environmental conservation. Environmental communication and public awareness, case
studies (e.g., CNG vehicles in Delhi).

Unit 8 Field Work | 05

References
1. Carson, R. (2002). Silent Spring. Houghton Mifflin Harcourt.

2. Gadgil, M., & Guha, R. (1993). This Fissured Land: An Ecological History of India. Univ. of California
Press.

3. Gleeson, B. and Low, N. (eds.) (1999). Global Ethics and Environment, London, Routledge.
4. Glejck, P. H. (1993). Water in Crisis. Pacific Institute for Studies in Dev., Environment & Security.
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Groom, Martha J., Gary K. Meffe, and Carl Ronald Carroll. (2006). Principles of Conservation Biology.
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Grumbine, R. Edward, and Pandit, M.K. (2013). Threats from India's Himalaya dams. Science, 339: 36-37.
McCully, P. (1996). Rivers no more: the environmental effects of dams (pp. 29-64). Zed Books.

McNeill, John R. (2000). Something New Under the Sun: An Environmental History of the Twentieth
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Nandini, N. (2019). A text book on Environmental Studies (AECC). Sapna Book House, Bengaluru.
Odum, E.P., Odum, H.T. & Andrews, J. (1971). Fundamentals of Ecology. Philadelphia: Saunders.
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Sodhi, N.S., Gibson, L. & Raven, P.H. (eds). (2013). Conservation Biology: Voices from the Tropics. John
Wiley & Sons.

Thapar, V. (1998). Land of the Tiger: A Natural History of the Indian Subcontinent. Warren, C. E. (1971).
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Name of the Program: Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com)
Course Code: B.Com. 2.5 (Open Elective Course)
Name of the Course: Financial Environment

Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

3 Credits 3 Hrs 42 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Group discussion, Seminar & field work etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the Students will be able to
a  Understand the fundamentals of Indian Economy and its significance.
b.  Evaluate the impact of monetary policy on the stakeholders of the Economy.
¢ Assess the impact of fiscal policy on the stakeholders of the Economy. Examine the status of
inflation, unemployment and labour market in India
d Inference the financial sector reforms in India.

Syllabus: Hours

Module No. 1: Fundamentals of India Economy 10

Introduction - Production & Cost-Demand & Supply-Perfect & Imperfect Competition- Monopoly-National
Income Accounting-Business Cycle-Open Economy-Ultility theory-
GDP-GNP-impact- other Macro financial indicators.

Module No. 2: Monetary Policy 08

Introduction - Meaning-objectives-qualitative & quantitative measures for credit control. Influence of policy
rates of RBI: Repo-Reverse repo- Marginal standing facility and Bank rate. Influence of reserve ratios of RBI:
CRR-SLR-Exchange rates-lending/deposit rates- design & issues of monetary policy-LAF - RBI Role,
functions and its Governance

Module No. 3: Fiscal Policy ‘ 08

Introduction - Meanings-objectives- public expenditure-public debt-fiscal & budget deficit- Keynesian approach-fiscal policy
tools-fiscal policy effects on employment-supply side approach-design & issues of fiscal policy-fiscal budget- Role of Ministry
of Finance in Fiscal Policy.

Module No. 4: Inflation, Unemployment and Labour market 08

Introduction - Inflation: Causes of rising & falling inflation-inflation and interest rates- social costs of inflation;
Unemployment — natural rate of unemployment-frictional & wait unemployment. Labour market and its interaction with
production system; Phillips curve- the trade-off between inflation and unemployment-sacrifice ratio-role of expectations
adaptive and rational

Module 5: Financial Sector Reforms: 08

Introduction-Financial sector reforms - Recommendation & action taken -SARFESI Act- Narasimhan Committee I & II- Kelkar
Committee. FRBM Act. Basel-BIS-history-need- mission-objectives-Basel norms I, II & III- criticism of Basel norms-
Implementations of Basel norms in India- impact of Basel norms on Indian banks.

Skill Development Activities:

Collect last ten year GDP rate and examine the same.

Collect last two years monetary policy rates of RBI and analyse the impact of the same.

Collect last five years fiscal policy of Indian Government and analyse the impact of the same on rural poor.

Collect last five year data on inflation, unemployment rate and labour market conditions and critically prepare the report.
Identify the recent financial sector reforms in India.

Any other activities, which are relevant to the course.

G

Text Books:

G.Sudarsana Reddy, Financial Environment, HPH.

V K Puri and S K Mishra, Indian Economy, HPH.

Datt and Sundharam’s, Indian Economy, S Chand

Ramesh Singh, Indian Economy, McGraw Hill education.

Khan and Jain, Financial Services, McGraw Hill Education, 8th edition
RBI working papers

Ministry of Finance, GOI of working papers

SEBI Guidelines Issued from time to time.

Note: Latest edition of text books may be used.
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Name of the Program: Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com)
Course Code: B.Com. 2.5 (Open Elective Course)
Name of the Course: Investing in Stock Markets

Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

3 Credits 3 Hrs 42 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Group discussion, Seminar & field work etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the Students will be able to
a. Explain the basics of investing in the stock market, the investment environment as well as risk &
return,
Analyse Indian securities market;
Examine EIC framework and conduct fundamental analysis;
Perform technical analysis;

/oo

e. Invest in mutual funds market.

Syllabus: Hours

Module No. 1: Basics of Investing 10

Basics of Investment & Investment Environment. Risk and Return, Avenues of Investment - Equity
shares, Preference shares, Bonds & Debentures, Insurance Schemes, Mutual Funds, Index Funds. Indian
Security Markets - Primary Market, Secondary Market and Derivative

Market. Responsible Investment.

Module No. 2: Fundamental Analysis 08

Top down and bottom up approaches, Analysis of international & domestic economic scenario, Industry
analysis, Company analysis (Quality of management, financial analysis: Both Annual and Quarterly,
Income statement analysis, position statement analysis including key financial ratios, Cash flow
statement analysis, Industry market ratios: PE, PEG, Price over sales, Price over book value, EVA),
Understanding Shareholding pattern of the company.

Module No. 3: Technical Analysis ‘ 08

Trading rules (credit balance theory, confidence index, filter rules, market breath, advances vs declines
and charting (use of historic prices, simple moving average and MACD) basic and advanced interactive
charts. Do’s & Don’ts of investing in markets.

Module No. 4: Indian Stock Market ‘ 08

Market Participants: Stock Broker, Investor, Depositories, Clearing House, Stock Exchanges. Role of
stock exchange, Stock exchanges in India- BSE, NSE and MCX. Security Market Indices: Nifty,
Sensex and Sectoral indices, Sources of financial information. Trading in securities: Demat trading,
types of orders, using brokerage and analyst recommendations

Module 5: Investing in Mutual Funds 08

Concept and background on Mutual Funds: Advantages, Disadvantages of investing in Mutual Funds,
Types of Mutual funds- Open ended, close ended, equity, debt, hybrid, index funds and money market
funds. Factors affecting choice of mutual funds. CRISIL mutual fund ranking and its usage, calculation
and use of Net Asset Value.

Skill Development Activities:

1. Work on the spreadsheet for doing basic calculations in finance.

2. Learners will also practice technical analysis with the help of relevant software.

3. Practice use of Technical charts in predicting price movements through line chart, bar chart, candle
and stick chart, etc., moving averages, exponential moving average.




4. Calculate of risk and return of stocks using price history available on NSE website.

5. Prepare equity research report-use of spreadsheets in valuation of securities,
Fundamental analysis of securities with the help of qualitative and quantitative data available in
respect of companies on various financial websites, etc.

6. Any other activities, which are relevant to the course.

Text Books:
1. Chandra, P. (2017). Investment Analysis and Portfolio Management. New Delhi: Tata McGraw
Hill Education.
2. Kevin, S. (2015). Security Analysis and Portfolio Management. Delhi: PHI Learning.
Ranganatham,
3. M., & Madhumathi, R. (2012). Security Analysis and Portfolio Management. Uttar Pradesh:
Pearson (India) Education.
4. Pandian, P. (2012). Security Analysis and Portfolio Management. New Delhi: Vikas Publishing
House.
Note: Latest edition of text books may be used.




Name of the Program: Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com)
Course Code: B.Com. 2.5 (Open Elective Course)

Name of the Course: Human Capital Management

No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

3 Hrs 42 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Group discussion, Seminar & field work etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the Students will be able to

Know the nature of Human Resource Management.

Say qualities of good Human Resource Manager.

Know the process of recruitment and selection and various training methods.
Know the importance of good industrial relations in success of a business.
Say about the collective bargaining.

o pooe

Syllabus Teaching Hours

Module No.1 Principles of Human Resource Management: 10

Principles of Human Resource Management: Human Resource Management - Definition - Objectives -
Functions - Scope - Importance - HRM in India - Evolution of HRM - Computer Application in Human|
Resource Management - Quality of a good Human Resource Managers, Human Resource Planning - Job
Analysis, Job description and Job Specification

Module No.2 Recruitment and Selection: ‘ 08

Recruitment and Selection - Sources of Recruitment - Selection Process - Test Types - Interview Types -
Career Planning - VS Man Power Planning and succession Planning - Career Planning - Process - Career
Development - Placement and Induction.

Module No.3 Training : \ 10

Training - Methods of Trading - Executive Development - Performance Appraisal - Methods of
Performance Appraisal - Transfers - Promotion - Wage & Salary Administration - Wage Boards and Pay
Commission - Wage Incentive. - Fringe Benefits - Employees Welfare - Safety and Health Measures -
Grievance Procedures - Redressal of Grievances.

Module No.4 Industrial Relations: ‘ 08

Industrial Relations - Meaning & Characteristics Industrial Relations - Parties to Industrial relations - Nature
of Trade Unions - Problems of Trade Union - Measures to Strengthen Trade Union Movement in India -
Causes for Industrial Disputes - Settlement of Industrial Disputes

Module No.5 Collective Bargaining ‘ 06

Collective - Bargaining - Features - Pre-requisite of Collective Bargaining - Agreement at different levels -
Workers Participation in Management - Objectives for Successful Participation

Skill Development Activities:

1. Visit a Small scale unit or a company and find out the importance of computers in HRM.

2. Visit a company of your choice collect the process of recruitment for a select job.

3. Conduct a survey among 10 small scale units to find out whether they conduct performance
appraisal and if yes what is/are the methods of performance appraisal.

4. Meet any trade union representative and collect the motive behind their trade union, and the
problems faced by the.

Reference Books

1. K. Aswathappa, Human Resource and Personnel Management, TMH.

2. C.B. Gupta, Human Resource Management - - Sultan and Sons.

3. P. Subba Rao, Personnel & Human Resource Management - - Himalaya Publishing House.

4. C.S. Venkata Rathnam & B.K. Srivastava, Personnel Management & Human Resources- TMPL.
5. C.B. Memoria, Dr. Satish Memoria &S.V. Gankar, Dynamics of Industrial Relations, HPH.

6. AIMA, Performance Appraisal, Theory and Practice- Vikas management Series, New Delhi
7. Pattanayak, Human Resource Management: PHI.

Note: Latest edition of text books may be used.




Name of the Program: Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com)
Course Code: B.Com. 2.5 (Open Elective Course)

Name of the Course: Stress Management

No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

3 Hrs 42 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Group discussion, Seminar & field work etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the Students will be able to
Understand the reasons for stress and approaches to stress

Know the signs of stress at work.

Describe the sources of stress and their impact on Physiological and psychological illness.
Say qualities of good Human Resource Manager.

Adopt a healthy life style. Know effective stress management.

f). Know stress management at organisational level.

A T

Syllabus Teaching Hours

Module No.1 Introduction to Stress 06

Setting to Stress- Stress: Meaning - Approaches to stress, Good Stress Vs Bad Stress, The individual
and work.

Module No.2 Manifestations of Stress ‘ 06
Manifestations of Stress - Stages of Stress, Signs of Stress at work, Personal types and Stress.
Module No.3 Sources of Stress ‘ 08
General sources of Stress - Stress and Health - Physiological and psychological illness

Module No.4 Stress Management ‘ 14

Stress Management - Stress Diary, Becoming change skilled, Adopting a healthy life style, Right
attitude, Thought Awareness, Imaginary (Auto-genic Therapy), Learning to relax, Correct breathing,
Value and goal planning, Time Management, General advice - The individual’s ten Commandments
for effective Stress management.

Module No.5 Organisation and Stress Management 08

Organization and Stress Management - Recognize the signs, Approaches to the problem, Providers
Assistance.

Skill Development Activities
1. Talk to a few employees of an organisation of your choice and find that they are facing any
stress, if yes, find their stress management methods.
2. Observe signs of stress at work by selecting your choice of workplace.
3. Find out the physiological and psychological illness due to stress..
4. Describe the techniques of time management.

Reference Books

1. Ann Edworthy, Managing Stress, Open University Press, Buckingham, Philadelphia.

2. K.Hari Gopal, Organizational Stress, University Press.

3. Rakesh Chopra Santosh Sharma, The stress Cyclone Suffer or Emerge out: The choice of
yours, Institute of corporate Management, Excel Books

Note: Latest edition of text books may be used




Name of the Program: Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com)
Course Code: B.Com. 2.5 (Open Elective Course)
Name of the Course: Rural Marketing

No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

3 Hrs 42 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Group discussion, Seminar & field work etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the Students will be able to

a. Illustrate the role of rural marketing manager in the backdrop of distinct characteristics of rural
market and c challenges of the rural marketing.

b. Use appropriates the segmentation, targeting and positioning of a hypothetical rural product/
service in alignment with the factors that influence rural consumers buying behaviour.

c. Design Pricing Strategy that suits characteristics of Rural Product and its phase in the product
life cycle.

d. Relate the appropriateness of Communication Strategy with chosen Rural Distribution channel
of rural product and Pricing strategy

e. Examine the opportunities of Agri Business in rural and its viability in the context of corporate
form of FMCG, Financial services Fertilizers and handicraft and artisan sector.

Syllabus Teaching Hours

Module 1: Introduction to Rural Marketing 08

Nature and scope of rural marketing, rural vs. urban markets, concepts and classification of rural markets,
rural marketing environment: rural population, occupation pattern, income generation, location of rural
population, expenditure pattern, literacy level, land distribution, land use pattern, irrigation, development
programs, infrastructure facilities, rural credit institutions, challenges in rural marketing

Module 2: Rural Consumer behavior, Market Segmenting 08

Targeting and positioning Consumer buying behaviour in rural markets, factors affecting consumer
behaviour, rural consumer buying process, diffusion of innovation, rise of rural consumerism Market
Segmentation, Conditions for Effective Market Segmentation, Approaches for Segmenting the Rural
Market: Based on Size of Village Population, Based on Location with Respects to Nearby Town, Based on
Size of Farmland, rural target market and product positioning.

Module 3: Rural Product and Pricing Strategy 08

Rural product, rural product classification, New Product Development in rural markets, Product Life Cycle
strategies in rural markets, product branding in rural markets, building brands in rural India, rural brand
loyalty, packaging for rural markets, rural product pricing, objectives of pricing, rural pricing strategies.

Module 4: Rural Distribution and Communication Strategy 10

Accessing rural markets, channels of distribution: wholesaling and rural retail system, rural mobile traders,
and prevalent rural distribution models: distribution models of FMCG companies, distribution model of
durable companies, Emerging Distribution Models. Rural communication strategy, challenges in rural
communication, communication process, determining communication objectives, designing the message,
selecting the communication channels, deciding the promotion mix, creating promotion mix for rural
audiences: advertisement, sales promotion, publicity.

Module 5: Corporate sector in Agri-Business 08

Factors enhancing agri-business opportunities, rural marketing of FMCG’s, rural marketing of durables and
financial services, rural marketing of fertilizers and agrochemicals, rural marketing of agricultural inputs
Rural marketing of handicraft and artisan sector. Rural India goes mobile and online, internet reach in rural
market, rural marketing case studies of new trends: Philips free power radio, rural banking thrust, ICICI rural
ATMs, Kissan Credit Cards, insurance reach, project Rural e- Seva and e-Choupal of ITC.




Skill Developments Activities:

1.

Analyse the marketing strategy of Coca Cola in rural market. Understand the distribution, pricing and
advertising strategy in rural India.

Identify an automobile brand and analyse its rural marketing initiatives in India and also state the rural
consumer behaviour towards automobile.

Identify various schemes provided by the Indian Government to enhance rural economy and explain a few of
them and their implications.

Identify few advertisement of FMCG products sold in rural markets in India and analyse the promotion mix
strategy.

Prepare a detailed report on rural consumer behaviour towards durable products in India.

Books for Reference:

1. T.P.Gopalaswamy, Rural Marketing, Vikas Publishing House, Third Edition, 2009.

2. Badi and Badi, Rural Marketing, Himalaya Publishing House, 2nd Edition, 2005.

Acharya and Agarwal, Agricultural Marketing in India, 6th Edition, Oxford and Wheeler Publishers, 2019.




Guidelines for
Continuous Internal Evaluation and Semester End Examination

The Members of the BOS Committee deliberated on the framework of Continuous
Internal Evaluation (CIE) as well Semester End Examination (SEE) for the courses.
The CIE and SEE will carry 40% and 60% weightage each, to enable the course to be
evaluated for a total of 100 marks, irrespective of its credits. The evaluation system of
the course is comprehensive and continuous during the entire period of the Semester.
For a course, the CIE and SEE evaluation will be on the following parameters:

Continuous Internal Evaluation (CIE)

100 50
Sl.No. Parameters for the Evaluation Marks Marks

SEE SEE
1 A. Continuous & Comprehensive Evaluation (CCE) 20 10
2 B. Internal Assessment Tests (IAT) 20 10
Total of CIE (A+B) 40 20
3 C. Semester End Examination (SEE) 60 30
Total Marks: (A + B+ C)| 100 50

Segregation of CIA components C1 and C2.

40 IA Marks are divided into two Components namely CI1 and C2. Each component carries
20 marks.

C1-20 Marks: Marks are assigned on the basis of Test (10marks) and Activity (10marks)

Test: Test need to be conducted as per the format for 20 marks; and marks scored need to be
converted to 10 Marks.

Activity: One activity need to be selected from the Activities List 1.

Activities List 1:
(i) Individual Assignments
(i1) Case studies/Case lets
(i11) Practical activities / Problem Solving Exercises and
(iv) Mini Projects/Capstone Projects.

C2-20 Marks: Marks are assigned on the basis of Test (10marks) and Activity (10marks)

Test: Test need to be conducted as per the format for 20 marks; and marks scored need to be
reduced or converted to 10 Marks.

Activity: One activity need to be selected from the Activities List 2.

Activities List 2:
(i) Seminars/Class Room Presentations/ Quizzes
(1)) Group Discussions /Class Discussion/ Group Assignments
(1i1) Participatory & Industry-Integrated Learning/ Filed visits; and
(iv) Participation in Seminars/ Academic Events/Symposia.



Question Paper Pattern for Internal Assessment Test

First/Second Internal Assessment Test, B.Com (Honors), Month, Year

Course Code:

Duration: 1 Hour

(NEP Syllabus 2021-22)

Commerce

Name of the Course:

SECTION-A

1. Answer the following MCQs, each question carries one mark.

Answer any two of the following questions. Each question carries four marks.
2.
3.
4.

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)

SECTION- B

SECTION- C

Answer any one of the following questions. The question carries 6 marks.

5.
6.

Total Marks: 20

(6% 1= 6)
(2 x4= 8)
(1x 6 = 6)



Question Paper Pattern for Internal Assessment Test

First/Second Internal Assessment Test, B.Com (Honors), Month, Year

(NEP Syllabus 2021-22)

Commerce
Course Code: Name of the Course:
Duration: 30 minutes
SECTION-A

1. Answer the following MCQs, each question carries one mark.

a)

b)
SECTION- B
Answer any two of the following questions. Each question carries four marks.
2.
3.

4.

Total Marks: 10

2x1=2)

(2 x4= 8)



Question Paper Pattern of the Semester End Examination

Semester B.Com./ (Honors) Examination, Month, Year
(NEP Syllabus 2021-22)

COMMERCE
Course /Paper:
Time: 2 Hours Max. Marks: 60
SECTION-A
Part -1
1. Answer all Multiple Choice Questions. Each MCQ carries One mark 6x1=06)
a.
b.
C.
d.
e.
f.
Part -1
Answer any THREE sub-questions. Each sub-question carries 2 Marks (3 x2=06)
g.
h.
i
J-
k.
SECTION- B

Answer any THREE of the following questions. Each Question Carries 4 Marks (3x4=12)
2.

3.
4.
5
6

SECTION- C
Answer any THREE of the following questions. Each Question Carries 12 Marks (3x12=36)
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.



Question Paper Pattern of the Semester End Examination

Semester B.Com. Examination, Month, Year
(NEP Syllabus 2021-22)

COMMERCE

Course /Paper:

Time: 1 Hours

1. Answer all Multiple Choice Questions. Each MCQ carries One mark

SECTION-A
Part -1

SECTION- B

Max. Marks: 30

5x1=5)

Answer any FIVE of the following questions. Each Question Carries 2 Marks (5 x 2 =10)

2.

3
4
5.
6
7
8

SECTION- C

Answer any THREE of the following questions. Each Question Carries 5 Marks (3 x 5 = 15)

9.

10.
11.
12.

13



TUMKUR UNIVERSITY

Scheme of Teaching and Evaluation and
Curriculum Framework for Four-Year
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2"! Year (3" and 4" Sem.) B.Com




Scheme of Teaching and Evaluation B.Com (Basic/Hons)

Third Semester
Teaching
S| Course . Category | Hours per Total .
No. Code Title of the Course of Courses Week SEE CIE Marks Credits
(L+T+P)
19 | Lang.1.1 Language — I AECC 3+1+0 60 [ 40 100 3
20 | Lang.1.2 Language — II AECC 3+140 60 [ 40 100 3
21 | B.Com.3.1 | Corporate Accounting DSC 3+0+2 60 40 100 4
22 | B.Com.3.2 | Business Statistics DSC 3+0+2 60 40 100 4
23 | B.Com.3.3 | Cost Accounting DSC 3+0+2 60 40 100 4
24 | B.Com.3.4 | Financial Education and SEC-SB 14+0+2 30 20 50 2
Investment Awareness
25 | B.Com.3.5 | Open Elective Course (OEC) OEC 3+0+0 60 | 40 100 3
26 | B.Com.3.6 | Physical Education
Sports/NCC/NSS/R&R
(S&G)/Other Course SEC-VB 0+0+4 50 50 2
prescribed by University
Sub —Total (C) 390 310 | 700 | 25
Acronyms Used
o AECC : Ability Enhancement Compulsory Course o OEC : Open Elective Course
o DSC : Discipline Specific Core (Course) o SEE : Semester End Examination
o SEC-SB : Skill Enhancement Course-Skill Based o CIE : Continuous Internal Evaluation
o SEC-VB : Skill Enhancement Course-Value Based o L+T+P : Lecture + Tutorial + Practical(s)

Note:

1. Practical Classes may be conducted in the Business Lab or in Computer Lab or in Class room depending on
the requirement. One batch of students should not exceed half (i.e., 50 or less than 50 students) of the
number of students in each class/section. 2 Hours of Practical Class is equal to 1 Hour of Teaching,
however, whenever it isconducted for the entire class (i.e., more than 50 students) 2 Hours of Practical Class
is equal to 2 Hours of Teaching.

2. Workload of the SEC-VB ‘Financial Education and Investment Awareness (FEIA)’ course depends on the
semester and programme in which FEIA is offered. For example if the FEIA course is offered in 3rd Semester
B.Sc. (2nd year) workload is created in 3rd Sem., or FEIA course is offered in 4th Semester BSW (2nd year)
then workload is created in 4th Sem.



Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

4 Credits 3+2 Hrs 56 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Tutorial Classes, Group discussion,Seminar & field work etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the Students will be able to
a. Understand the treatment of underwriting of shares.

b. Comprehend the computation of profit prior to incorporation.
c. Know the valuation of intangible assets.
d. Know the valuation of shares.
e. Prepare the financial statements of companies as per companies act, 2013.
Syllabus Hours
Module No. 1: Underwriting of Shares 10

Introduction- Meaning of Underwriting — SEBI regulations regarding underwriting, Underwriting
commission. Underwriter — functions - Advantages of Underwriting. Types of underwriting -
Marked and Unmarked Applications —Determination of Liability in respect of underwriting contract —
when fully underwritten and partially underwritten — with and without firm underwriting problem,
Treating firm applications as marked.

Module No. 2: Profit Prior to Incorporation 10

Introduction - Meaning — calculation of sales ratio — time ratio — weighted ratio — treatment of Pre-post
incorporation profits / loss — Ascertainment of pre-incorporation and post- incorporation profits by
preparing statement of Profit and Loss.

Module No. 3 Valuation of Intangible Assets 10

Introduction - Valuation of Goodwill —factors influencing Goodwill, circumstances of valuation of
goodwill- Methods of Valuation of Goodwill: Average Profit Method, Capitalization of average
Profit Method, Super Profit Method and Annuity Method-Problems. Brand valuation and
Intellectual Property Rights - IPR (Concepts only)

Module No. 4: Valuation of Shares 10

Introduction - Meaning — Need for Valuation — Factors Affecting Valuation — Methods of
Valuation: Intrinsic Value Method, Yield Method, Fair Value of shares.
Earning Capacity Method, Rights Issue and Warrants. (Concepts only).

Module 5: Financial Statements of Companies 16

Statutory Provisions regarding preparation of financial statements of companies as per schedule III
of Companies Act,2013 and IND AS-1.Preparation of Income Statement and Balance Sheet.

Skill Development Activities

1. Compile the list of Indian companies which have issued shares through IPO / FPO in the current financial

year.

2. Determine Underwriters’ Liability in case of an IPO, with imaginary figures. e Present the format of
‘Statement of Profit and Loss’, ‘Balance Sheet’ and ‘Statement of Changes in Equity’, with imaginary
figures.

Collect financial statement of a company and calculate intrinsic value of an equity share.
Collect annual report of a Company and List out its assets and Liabilities.
Collection of latest financial statements of a company and find out the intrinsic value ofshares.
Collect the annual reports of company and calculate the value of goodwill under different
methods.

SANR AN e

7. Any other activities, which are relevant to the course.




Text Books

1.

J.R. Monga, Fundamentals of Corporate Accounting. Mayur Paper Backs, NewDelhi.

. M.C. Shukla, T.S. Grewal, and S.C. Gupta. Advanced Accounts. Vol.-1I. S. Chand &

Co., New Delhi.

S.N. Maheshwari, and S. K. Maheshwari. Corporate Accounting. Vikas PublishingHouse,
New Delhi.

Ashok Sehgal, Fundamentals of Corporate Accounting. Taxman Publication, New Delhi.
V.K. Goyal and Ruchi Goyal, Corporate Accounting. PHI Learning.

Jain, S.P. and K.L. Narang. Corporate Accounting. Kalyani Publishers, New Delhi.
Bhushan Kumar Goyal, Fundamentals of Corporate Accounting, InternationalBook House
P. C. Tulsian and Bharat Tulsian, Corporate Accounting, S.Chand

Amitabha Mukherjee, Mohammed Hanif, Corporate Accounting, McGraw HillEducation

. Arulanandam & Raman, Corporate Accounting —II, HPH, Mumbai.

. Madegowda J, Advanced corporate accounting, HPH, Mumbai.

. Soundarajan. A & K. Venkataramana, Corporate Accounting, VBH.

. S. P. Jain and K. L. Narang — Corporate Accounting, Kalyani Publishers.

.S P Iyengar, Advanced Accountancy, Sultan Chand

. R L Gupta, Advanced Accountancy, Sultan Chand & Sons,

. Anil Kumar .S, Rajesh Kumar.V and Mariyappa .B, Corporate Accounting, HPH.

Note: Latest edition of text books may be used.




Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

4 Credits 3+2 Hrs 56 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Tutorial Classes, Group discussion,Seminar & field work etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the Students will be able to
a. Familiarizes statistical data and descriptive statistics for business decision-making.

b. Comprehend the measures of variation and measures of Skewness.

c. Demonstrate the use of probability and probability distributions in business.

d. Validate the application of correlation and regression in business decisions.

e. Show the use of index numbers in business.

Syllabus Hours

Module No. 1: Statistical Data and Descriptive statistics. 14

Introduction to Statistics: Meaning, Definition, Scope, Importance, Limitations and Distrust of
Statistics. Classification — Meaning, Objectives and types. Construction of frequency table.
Tabulation - Meaning, objectives, parts of table—problems.

Measures of Central Tendency: Meaning, types of Statistical averages, Arithmetic mean, Median
and Mode — Problems (excluding grouping and analysis table)

Module No. 2: Measures of Variation and Skewness 14

Measures of Variation: Absolute and relative variation. Range, Quartile Deviation, Mean
deviation, Standard deviation, and their coefficients. Problems on standard deviation and Co-
efficient of Variation.

Skewness: Meaning, Measurement of Skewness using Karl Pearson and Bowley’s measures.

Module No. 3: Probability Distributions 06

Theory of Probability. Approaches to the calculation of probability; Calculation of event
Probabilities. Addition and multiplication laws of probability (Proof not required); Conditional
probability and Bayes’ Theorem (Proof not required)- Expectation and variance of a random
variable - Probability distributions - Binomial distribution:

Module No. 4: Correlation and Regression Analysis | 14

Correlation Analysis: Meaning of Correlation, Types of correlation- Positive and negative
correlation-simple, partial, and multiple correlation. Linear and Non-linear correlation, Problems
on Karl Pearson’s co-efficient of Correlation. Probable error.

Rank Correlation, Meaning, Problems on Spearman’s Rank Correlation.

Regression Analysis: Meaning and Definition- Regression lines, Regression equations and
estimation; Relationship between Correlation and Regression coefficients — Regression equation
XonY and Y on X.

Module 5: Index Numbers 08

Meaning and uses of index numbers; Construction of index numbers: Fisher’s ideal index number
with Time Reversal Test and Factor Reversal Tests. Construction of consumer price indices Using
Aggregative Expenditure method and Family Budget method.




Skill Development Activities

1.

A

Application of MS Excel Functions in statistical decision making and students should
submit output of the same.

Collect the age statistics of 08 new married couples calculate Correlation coefficient.
Recall the use of probability theory in business.

Identify the applicability of correlation and regression in business decisionmaking.
Construct consumer price indices with imaginary figures.

Any other activities, which are relevant to the course.

Text Books
1.

5.
6.
7.

Gupta, S.P., and Archana Agarwal. Business Statistics, Sultan Chand and Sons, New
Delhi.

Vohra N. D., Business Statistics, McGraw Hill Education.
Gupta, S.C. Fundamentals of Statistics. Himalaya Publishing House.

Anderson, Sweeney, and Williams, Statistics for Students of Economics and Business,
Cengage Learning.

CB Gupta, Introduction to Statistical Methods, Vikas Publishing, New Delhi.
DN Elhance Fundamentals of Statistics, Kitab Mahal, New Delhi.
Sen Chetty and Kapoor, Mathematical Statistics, Sultan Chand & Sons

Note: Latest edition of text books may be used.




Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

4 Credits 3+2 Hrs 56 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Tutorial Classes, Group discussion,Seminar & field work etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the students will be able to
a. Understand concepts of cost accounting & Methods of Costing.

b. Outline the Procedure and documentations involved in procurement of materials &
compute the valuation of Inventory.

c. Make use of payroll procedures & compute idle and over time.
d. Discuss the methods of allocation, apportionment & absorption of overheads.

e. Prepare cost sheet & discuss cost allocation under ABC.

Syllabus Hours

Module No. 1: Introduction to Cost Accounting 12

Introduction- Meaning and definition- Objectives, Importance and Uses of Cost Accounting,
Difference between Cost Accounting and Financial Accounting; Various Elements of Cost and
Classification of Cost; Cost object, Cost unit, Cost driver, cost centre; Cost reduction and Cost
control; Methods and Techniques of Costing (Meanings Only); Limitations of Cost Accounting;
Cost Sheet: Meaning, Problems on Cost Sheet, Tenders and Quotations.

Module No. 2: Material Cost 12

Materials: Meaning, Importance and Types of Materials — Direct and Indirect Material - Material
control - Technique of inventory control, problems on level setting and EOQ. Procurement-
Procedure for procurement of materials and documentation involved in materials accounting — Bin
Card and Stores Ledger — Duties of Store keeper, Pricing of Material issues, preparation of Stores
Ledger Account — FIFO, LIFO, Simple Average Price and Weighted Average Price Methods —
Problems.

Module No. 3: Labour Cost 10

Introduction — labour Cost — types of labour cost -Labour Cost Control — Time keeping and
Time booking and Payroll Procedure -Preparation of Payroll: Idle Time, Causes, Treatment of
Normal and Abnormal Idle time, Over Time, Causes and Treatment -Labour Turnover- Meaning,
Reasons and Effects of Labour turnover. Methods of Wage Payment: Time rate system and
Piece rate system, and the Incentive schemes- Halsey plan, Rowan plan and Taylor Differential
Piece rate system-Problems.

Module No. 4: Overheads 12

Introduction- Meaning and Classification of Overheads, Importance, Control of Manufacturing
Overheads, Cost Allocation, Apportionment, Basis of apportionment. Problems on Primary
Distribution of Overheads, Secondary distribution of overhead using Repeated Distribution
Method and Simultaneous Equation Method. Absorption of Overheads: Meaning and Methods
of Absorption (Concepts only). Machine hour rate, Meaning, Problems on Machine Hour Rate.




Module No. 5: Reconciliation of Cost and Financial Accounts 10

Introduction — Meaning, Objectives and need for Reconciliation, Reasons for differences in
Profits under Financial and Cost Accounts; Procedure for Reconciliation — Preparation of
Reconciliation Statement — Problems.

Skill Developments Activities

1. Visit any Manufacturing entity, collect the method of inventory valuation adopted &

procedure involved in procuring inventory.

. Draw the format of five documents used for material accounting
3. Prepare dummy Payroll with imaginary figures.

. Visit any large-scale organisation, identify the techniques used for controlling

administrative, Selling & distribution overheads.

5. Visit any manufacturing entity and collect the cost data and prepare the cost sheet.

. Any other activities, which are relevant to the course.

Text Books

I. Charles T. Horngren, Srikant M. Datar, Madhav V. Rajan, Cost Accounting: A
Managerial Emphasis, Pearson Education.

2. Jawahar Lal, Cost Accounting., McGraw Hill Education, New Delhi.

3. Madegowda J, Cost Accounting, HPH, Mumbai.

4. Rajiv Goel, Cost Accounting, International Book House.

5. Jain, S.P. and K.L. Narang. Cost Accounting: Principles and Methods. KalyaniPublishers

6. Arora, M.N. Cost Accounting — Principles and Practice, Vikas PublishingHouse, New
Delhi.

a. Maheshwari, S.N. and S.N. Mittal. Cost Accounting: Theory and Problems.
Shri Mahavir Book Depot, New Delhi.

7. lyengar, S.P. Cost Accounting, Sultan Chand & Sons.

8. Mariyappa B, Cost Accounting, HPH

Note: Latest edition of text books may be used.




Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

2 Credits 1+2 Hrs 30 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Tutorial Classes, Group discussion,Seminar & field work etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the students will be able to
a. Provide the foundations for financial decision making
b. List out various saving and investment alternatives available for a common man
c. Understand an overview of stock markets and stock selection
d. Learn about mutual funds and the criteria for selection

Syllabus Hours
Theory Models 15
Module No. 1: Foundations for Finance 04

Introduction to Basic Concepts: Understand the need for financial planning — basic concepts — life
goals and financial goals — format of a sample financial plan for a young adult.

Economics: Meaning — scope — key concepts influencing decision making both micro & macro
Banking in India: Types of Bank Deposits, Deposit Insurance (PMJDY). Traditional and New

Banking Models. Debit and Credit Cards. Digital Payment System — Internet Banking (NEFT, RTGS
and IMPS), Mobile Banking, Mobile Wallet, Aadhaar Enabled Payment System (AEPS), Unified
Payments Interface (UPI).

Orientation to Financial Statements: Financial terms and concepts, model for reading financial
statements, basic ratios for evaluating companies while investing — Time Value of Money — Concept
of Compounding and Discounting

Module No. 2: Investment Management 08

Investment Goals: Basic investment objectives — Investment goals — time frame — assessing risk
profile — concept of diversification — risk measurement tools.

Investment and Saving Alternatives for a Common Investor: Insurance — Health, Life and Other
General Insurance (Vehicle Insurance, Property Insurance, etc), Retirement and Pension Plans —
National Pension System, Atal Pension Yojana, PM-SYM Yojana, PMLVMY PMKMDY etc.,
Stocks, Bonds, Mutual Funds. Investor Protection and Grievance Redressal.

Stock Markets: Primary Market and Secondary Market, Stock Exchanges, Stock Exchange
Operations — Trading and Settlement, Demat Account, Depository and Depository Participants.

Stock Selection: Fundamental Analysis — Economy Analysis, Industry Analysis and Company
Analysis. Technical Analysis — Graphical Patterns, Candle-stick Patterns, Indicators and

Oscillators.

Stock Return and Risk: Analysing risk and returns trade off-relationship-investment risk

Module No. 3: Mutual Funds and Financial Planning Essentials 03

Mutual Funds: Features of Mutual Funds, Mutual Fund History in India, Major Fund Houses in
India and Mutual Fund Schemes. Types of Mutual Fund Plans. Net Asset Value. Criteria for
selection of Mutual Funds: Returns, Performance Measures — Sharpe, Treynor, Alpha, Beta and 12
Financial Planning: Sample formats — Integrating all the concepts learnt with a personal financial
plan. Giving and supporting: Family support — charitable giving — crowd sourcing for needs.




Practical Modules

30 Hrs

For Module No. 1

Foundations for Finance

©)

(©]

©)

Spreadsheet Modelling:

= [F Function

= SUM Function

* AVERAGE Function

= INDEX, MATCH and VLOOKUP Function
= RANK Function

= SUMPRODUCT Function

= MAX & MIN Function

= ERRORS in Modeling (#VALUE!, #NAME?, #DIV/0!, #REF!, #NUM!, #NA)
= PRESENT VALUE Functions

= FUTURE VALUE Functions

= ANNUITY Functions

= PERPETUITY Functions

Statistical Functions in Excel

Financial Statements in Excel

07

For Module No. 2

Investment Management

(©]

O 0O O O O O

O
O

Administering Risk Tolerance Tool

Group Presentations on Investment Alternatives (Advantages, Suitability and Limitations)
Demonstration of Stock Trading

Economy Analysis (www.tradingeconomics.com)

Industry Analysis (www.ibef.org)

Company Analysis (www.valueresearchonline.com)

Spreadsheet Modelling for Stock Valuation (Dividend Discount Model, Free Cash Flow
and Relative Valuation)

Demonstration of Technical Analysis and Exercises (NSE — TAME)
Spreadsheet Modelling for calculating Stock Return, Risk and Beta

17

For Module No. 3

Mutual Funds and Financial Planning Essentials

o

Identification of Fund Houses in India, Schemes and Plans of each Mutual Fund
House (www.amfiindia.in , www.valueresearchonline.com)

Exercises on Calculation of Net Asset Value

Demonstration of Mutual Fund Fact Sheet

Exercises on reading performance measures and selection of Mutual Funds
Preparation of Financial Plan

06




References
1. RBI Financial Education Handbook
2. NSE Knowledge Hub, Al-powered Learning Experience Platform for BFSI

3. NSE Academy Certification in Financial Markets (NCFM) Modules: a. Macroeconomics for
Financial Markets

b. Financial Markets (Beginners Module)
c. Mutual Funds (Beginners Module)
d. Technical Analysis
Text Books
1. Prasanna Chandra, Financial Management. McGraw Hill Education.
2. Aswath Damodaran, Corporate Finance, John Wiley & Sons Inc.
3. Pitabas Mohanty, Spreadsheet Skills for Finance Professionals, Taxmann Publications.
4. Fischer & Jordan, Security Analysis & Portfolio Management, Prentice Hall.
Websites
1. www.sebi.gov.in
2. www.nseindia.com

3. www.amfiindia.com

Note: Latest edition of text books may be used.




Scheme of Teaching and Evaluation B.Com (Basic/Hons)

Fourth Semester

Category Teaching
2l i Title of the Course of Hours per SEE | CIE il Credits
No. Code Courses Week Marks
(L+T+P)
27 | Lang.1.1 Language — [ AECC 3+1+0 60 40 100 3
28 | Lang.1.2 Language — II AECC 3+1+0 60 40 100 3
29 | B.Coma4.1 |“dvanced Corporate DSC 34042 | 60 | 40| 100 4
Accounting
30 | B.Coma |Costing Methods & DSC | 3+042 | 60 | 40| 100 | 4
Techniques
Business Regulatory
31 [ B.Com.4.3 DSC 4+0+0 60 40 100 4
Framework
32 | B.Com4.4 |India & Indian AECC | 3+040 | 60 | 40| 100 | 3
Constitution
33 | B.Com.4.5 | Artificial Intelligence SEC-SB 1+0+2 30 20 50 2
Physical Education
Sports/NCC/NSS/R&R
34 | B.Com.4.6 SEC-VB 0+0+4 50 50 2
om (S&@G)/Other Course
prescribed by University
Sub —Total (D) 390 | 310 700 25

Acronyms Used

AECC : Ability Enhancement Compulsory Course

OEC : Open Elective Course

DSC : Discipline Specific Core (Course)

SEE : Semester End Examination

SEC-SB : Skill Enhancement Course-Skill Based

CIE : Continuous Internal Evaluation

o
o
o
o

SEC-VB : Skill Enhancement Course-Value Based

O
O
O
O

L+T+P : Lecture + Tutorial + Practical(s)

Note: Practical Classes may be conducted in the Business Lab or in Computer Lab or in Class room

depending on the requirement. One batch of students should not exceed half (i.e., 50 or less than

50 students) of the number of students in each class/section. 2 Hours of Practical Class is equal

to 1 Hour of Teaching, however, whenever it isconducted for the entire class (i.e., more than 50

students) 2 Hours of Practical Class is equal to 2 Hours of Teaching.




Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

4 Credits 3+2 Hrs 56 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classroom lectures, Case studies, Group discussion & Seminar etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the Students will be able to
a. Know the procedure of redemption of preference shares.

b. Comprehend the different methods of Mergers and Acquisition of Companies
c. Understand the process of internal reconstruction.
d. Prepare the liquidators final statement of accounts.
e. Understand the recent developments in accounting and accounting standards.
Syllabus Hours
Module No. 1: Redemption of Preference Shares 10

Meaning — legal provisions — premium on redemption — creation of Capital Redemption
Reserve Account— Fresh issue of shares — Arranging for cash balance for the purpose of

redemption out of divisible profits and fresh issue — Journal entries —  Preparation of Balance
sheet (Schedule III to Companies Act 2013) after redemption.
Module No. 2: Accounting for Mergers and Acquisition of Companies 18

Meaning of Amalgamation and Acquisition — Types of Amalgamation — Amalgamation in
the nature of Merger — Amalgamation in the nature of Purchase - Methods of Calculation of
Purchase Consideration (Ind AS 103), Net asset Method — Total Payment Method, Accounting
for Amalgamation (Problems on purchase method) — Journal Entries and Ledger Accounts in
the Books of Transferor Company and Journal Entries in the books of Transferee Company
— Preparation of Balance Sheet (Schedule III to Companies Act 2013).

Module No. 3: Internal Reconstruction of Companies 10

Meaning of Capital Reduction; Objectives of Capital Reduction; Provisions for Reduction of
Share Capital under Companies Act, 2013. Forms of Reduction. Accounting for Capital
Reduction. Journal Entries, Preparation of Capital Reduction Account and Balance sheet
(Schedule III to Companies Act 2013).

Module No. 4: Liquidation of Companies 12

Meaning of Liquidation, Modes of Winding up — Compulsory Winding up, Voluntary Winding
up and winding up subject to Supervision by Court / tribunal. Order of payments in the event of
Liquidation. Liquidator’s Statement of Account. Liquidator’s remuneration. Problems on
Preparation of Liquidator’s Statement of Account (Voluntary Winding up).

Module No. 5: Recent Developments in Accounting and Accounting standards. 06

Human Resource Accounting — Meaning, importance, Methods, Problems on HR
accounting. Environmental Accounting — Meaning and Types, Discloser as per Global
Reporting Initiative (GRI) Reporting of variables — Social Responsibility Accounting —
Meaning and Importance.




Skill Development Activities

1.
2.
3.

List out legal provisions in respect of Redemption of Preference shares.
Calculation of Purchase consideration with imaginary figures.

List any five cases of amalgamation in the nature of merger or acquisition of JointStock
Companies.

List out legal provisions in respect of internal reconstruction.

5. List out any five Indian Accounting Standards.

Any other activities, which are relevant to the course.

Text Books
1.

© 0 N U AW

Arulanandam & Raman, Corporate Accounting-II, HPH.

Anil Kumar.S Rajesh Kumar.V and Mariyappa.B, Advanced Corporate
Accounting, HPH.

Venkataraman. R, Advanced Corporate Accounting.

S.N. Maheswari , Financial Accounting, Vikas publishing, New Delhi.
Soundarajan A & K. Venkataramana, Advanced Corporate Accounting, SHBP.
RL Gupta, Advanced Accountancy, Sultan Chand & Sons.

K.K Verma, Corporate Accounting, Excell Books.

Jain and Narang, Corporate Accounting, Kalyani Publishers

Tulsian, Advanced Accounting,

10. Shukla and Grewal — Advanced Accountancy, Sultan Chand

11. Srinivas Putty, Advanced Corporate Accounting, HPH.

Note: Latest edition of text books may be used.




Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of TeachingHours

4 Credits 3+2 Hrs 56 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classroom lectures, Case studies, Group discussion & Seminar etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the Students will beable to
a. The method of costing applicable in different industries.
b. Determination of cost by applying different methods of costing.
c. Prepare flexible and cash budget with imaginary figures
d. Analyse the processes involved in standard costing.
e. Familiarize with the Activity Based Costing and its applications.

Syllabus Hours

Module No. 1: Job and Contract Costing 12

Job Costing: Meaning, prerequisites, Job costing procedure, Features, objectives, applications,
advantages and disadvantages of Job costing, Job cost sheet- problems.

Contract Costing: Meaning, features, applications of contract costing, similarities and dissimilarities
between job costing and contract costing, recording of contract costs, meaning of terms used in
contract costing, Treatment of profit on incomplete contracts-Problems.

Module No. 2: Process and Service Costing 15

Process costing: Meaning, features and applications of Process Costing; comparison between Job
Costing and Process Costing, advantages and disadvantages of process costing; treatment of process
losses and gains in cost accounts; preparation of process accounts.

Service costing: Introduction to service costing - Transport Costing: Meaning and objectives, operating
cost sheet, computation of vehicle kilometers and passenger kilometers—Problems. Transport services,
hospitals and educational institutions- problems

Module No. 3: Activity Based Costing 05

Introduction - Weakness of conventional costing system — concept of ABC — Characteristics of ABC -
Kaplan and Cooper’s Approach — cost drivers and cost pools — allocation of overheads under ABC —
Steps in the implementation of ABC — Benefits from adaptation of ABC system — difficulties faced by
the industries in the successful implementation of ABC.

Module 4: Marginal Costing 12

Meaning and Definition of marginal cost, marginal costing, features of marginal costing- terms used
in marginal costing — P/V ratio, BEP, Margin of Safety, Angle of Incidence. Break Even Analysis
assumptions and uses. Break Even Chart. Problems on CVP analysis.

Module 5: Budgetary Control and Standard Costing 12

Budgetary Control Introduction — Meaning & Definition of Budget and Budgetary Control —
Objectives of Budgetary Control — essential requirements of budgetary control — advantages and
disadvantages of budgetary control — Types of budgets- Functional Budgets - Cash budget, sales
budget, purchase budget and production budget. Fixed and Flexible budgets - Problems on Flexible
budget and Cash budget only.

Standard Costing Introduction — Uses and limitations, variance analysis- Material variances, Labour
variances and Overhead variances- problems on Material and Labour variances only.




Skill Development Activities:
1. Naming the appropriate method of costing with justification for each of the following
Industries-Paper Mill, Printing, Sugar Mill, Rice Mill, Hospital, Oil Refinery, Pickle
Manufacturing, KSRTC and Hotel.

List out the modern costing tools in accounting field.
Prepare flexible Budget and cash budget with imaginary figures

Narrate the steps involved in standard costing. System.

A

Prepare a report, which explains the conditions that are necessary for thesuccessful
implementation of a JIT manufacturing system.

6. Explain ABC. Illustrate how ABC can be applied.

Note: Any other activities in addition to the above, which are relevant to the course.

Reference Books:
1. John K Shank and Vijaya Govindarajan; Strategic Cost Management; FreePress
Publication; New York.

2. S PJain and K L Narang, Advanced Cost Accounting, Kalyani Publications.

3. Robert S Kaplan and Anthony A Atkinson, Advanced ManagementAccounting,
PHI, New Delhi.

4. Shank and Govindrajan, Strategic Cost Management, Simon and Schuster,36 New York.

5. Lin Thomas, Cases and Readings in Strategic Cost Management, McGrawHill
Publications, New York.

6. Mariyappa B Methods and Techniques of Costing., HPH.

Note: Latest edition of Reference books may be used.




Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

4 Credits 4 Hrs 56 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Group discussion, Seminar & field worketc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the Students will be able to

a. Recognize the laws relating to Contracts and its application in business activities.

b. Acquire knowledge on bailment and indemnification of goods in a contractual
relationship and role of agents.

c. Comprehend the rules for Sale of Goods and rights and duties of a buyer and a
seller.
Distinguish the partnership laws, its applicability and relevance.

e. Rephrase the cyber law in the present context.

Syllabus Hours

Module No. 1: Indian Contract Act, 1872 18

Introduction — Definition of Contract, Classification of Contract, Essentials of Valid Contract, Legality
of the object, Offer and acceptance, consideration, contractual capacity, free consent.
Classification of Contract, Discharge of a Contract, Breach of Contract and Remedies to Breach of
Contract

Module No. 2: The Sale of Goods Act, 1930 08

Introduction - Definition of Contract of Sale, Essentials of Contract of Sale, Conditions and
Warranties, Transfer of ownership in goods including sale by a non- owner and exceptions -
Unpaid seller, rights of an unpaid seller against the goods and against the buyer

Module No. 3: Competition and Consumer Laws 10

The Competition Act 2002 — Objectives of Competition Act, Features of Competition Act,
CAT, Offences and Penalties under the Act, Competition Commission of India.

Consumer Protection Act 1986 — Definitions of the terms — Consumer, Consumer Dispute,
Defect, Deficiency, Unfair Trade Practices, and Services, Rights of Consumer under the Act,
Consumer Redressal Agencies — District Forum, State Commission and National Commission.

Module No. 4: Economic Laws 10

WTO patent rules — Indian Patent Act, 1970 — Meaning and Scope of Intellectual Property
Rights (IPR), Procedure to get Patent for Inventions.

FEMA 1999 — Objectives of FEMA, Salient Features of FEMA, Definition of Important Terms
— Authorized Dealer, Currency - Foreign Currency, Foreign Exchange, Foreign Security.

Module 5: Environment and Cyber Laws 10

Environment Protection Act 1986 — Objectives of the Act, Definitions of Important Terms —
Environment, Environment Pollutant, Environment Pollution, Hazardous Substance and
Occupier, Types of Pollution, Powers of Central Government to protect Environment in India.
Cyber Law: Definition, Introduction to Indian Cyber Law, Cyber space and Cyber security.




Skill Development Activities:

1
2.
3.
4
5

*

~

Discuss the case of “Carlill vs Carbolic Smoke Ball Company” case

Discuss the case of “Mohori Bibee v/s Dharmodas Ghose”.

Discuss any one case law relating to minor.

State the procedure for getting patent for ‘inventions’ and / or ‘non-inventions’.

List at least 5 items which can be categorized as ‘hazardous substance’ according to
Environment Protection Act.

List out any top upcoming jobs in cyber security and examine the skills requiredfor
the same.

Any other activities, which are relevant to the course.

Text Books:

1.

A

A SRR

M.C. Kuchhal, and Vivek Kuchhal, Business Law, Vikas Publishing House, New
Delhi.

Avtar Singh, Business Law, Eastern Book Company, Lucknow.
Ravinder Kumar, Legal Aspects of Business, Cengage Learning
K. Aswathappa, Business Laws, HPH

SN Maheshwari and SK Maheshwari, Business Law, National Publishing House,
New Delhi.

Aggarwal S K, Business Law, Galgotia Publishers Company, New Delhi
Bhushan Kumar Goyal and Jain Kinneri, Business Laws, International Book House
Sushma Arora, Business Laws, Taxmann Pulications.

Akhileshwar Pathak, Legal Aspects of Business, McGraw Hill Education, 6th Ed.
P C Tulsian and Bharat Tulsian, Business Law, McGraw Hill Education

. Sharma, J.P. and Sunaina Kanojia, Business Laws, Ane Books Pvt. Ltd., New Delhi

K. Rama Rao and Ravi S.P., Business Regulatory Framework., HPH

. N.D. Kapoor, Business Laws, Sultan Chand Publications
. Information Technology Act/Rules 2000, Taxmann Publications Pvt. Ltd.

Chanda.P.R, Business Laws, Galgotia Publishing Company

Note: Latest edition of text books may be used.




INDIA AND INDIAN CONSTITUTION

(This is a compuisory 1-credit course for all Undergraduaie Programs)

Ability Enhancement Compulsory Courses (AECC)

Course Title: INDIA AND INDIAN CONSTITUTION

Total Contacs Hours: 45 Course Credits: 3
No. of Teaching Hours/Week:3 Duration of ESA/Exam: 2 Hours
Formutive Assessment Marks: 40 Qummative Assessment Marks: 60+40=100

Course Objective:

The purpose of the course i« to help students 1o leam and explain the journey af India-as a republic.
hey will, through this paper appreciate the varied perspective of describing Indin, its political culture.
essence of its traditions, values and ideals of [reedom struggle, sacrifices miade and the gonstitution us
India’s conscience. it will help them determine the role and responsibilities of citizens as enshrined
in the constitution giving insights in fo.the world of knowledge system India-has had; The course 8lso
als and policies framed under the constitution for the national well-being, This will

cavers the 2o
aricus institutions that

ennble the students 1© demonstrate how vibrant is our constitution and the v

are functiona) under it.
Learning Outcomes:
After completing this course students will be able to-
o Explainthe philosophy of the Canstitution and its struciure.
o Measure the powers.and functions of variaus offices under the Constitution,

o Demonstrate the Indian values, {deals and the role of Constitution in 8 Democracy

r Unit | et *-cm..maum—————yﬁm il
| Unitl | Understanding India: [ {5 ¥eun |
| |
' I Chapter 1: India in its historical perspective: India as & nation-
' (04 Hours) |

| | discourses: Muarxist, Orientalist, Nationalist and subaltern,

l ’Chapler- 2: Political Culture of india - Otigin und Growth: |
| | Reyvivalism {Vivekanandy, Dayangnda Saraswati,) . Communalism ’

(Sir Syed Ahmed Khan wnd Savarkar) and Secularism {Gandhi and ’ ‘
‘ ’ Nehru) (05 Hours) l

N |




Chapter- 3; Religions and Dharma- Semitic Religions and Way of |

Life; Mathas (Traditions)- Shaiva, Vaisnava, Jaina, Bouddha,
Veerashaiva Lingayata, and Sikh: Understanding Castes and
Traditions (M.N Stinivas).

(06 Hours)

Unit-11

Indian freedom struggle- Ideals, Valueés and Contributions:

Chapter 4: Indian Freedom Struggle: British Rule in India and
Indinn Freedom Struggle: Early Phase, Moderates. Extremists and
Gandhion Phase: Subaltern (Pessamts. Tribals and  Artisans)
Response to Colonial Rule.

Chapter 5: Indian Ideals und Values: Swatantra (Dharampal).
Swarajys, Swadeshi, Patriotism, Volunwrism- Shramadhan,
Bhoodan, {Gandhi, Vinoba Bhave, Deen Dayal Upadhyay),

Chapter 6: Regional Contributions: Sangolli Rayanna, Kitur Rani
Chennumma, Rani Abbakka Devi, Hardekar Manjappa, Kambali
Siddappa: Regional Struggles: Madikeri Peasants, Halagali Bedas,
Isuru, Vidurashwatha and Nagara Struggles,

15 Hours

(05 Hours)

(05 Hours)

(05 Hours)

Unit- 11X

Constitutional Vatues and Role of Citizens:

Chapter 7: Making of Indian Constitution: Constituent Assembly-
Composition: Salient features of the Indian Constitution, Preamble
Fundamental Rights, Fundamental Duties, Citizenship. Directive
Principles. Union and Stute Govemnments,

Chapter 8: Role and Responsibilities of Citizens (Ecological and
Environmental Awareness. National Wellbeing, Respect to National
Anthemn und National Symbols); Goals and Policies of National
Development (Goals: Eradication of Poverty andHunger, Gender
Equity. Empowerment,  Sustainable Development: Policies:
Swachh Bharat, Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojuna, Gram Jyoti Yojana).

Chapter 9: Indian Knowledge System: Evolution, Ancient
Universities (Takshashils, Nalanda etc,), Gurukula and Oral
Traditions. Vocational Education in India, Role of teachers and
students in Nation Building. Obligation (Vrutti Dharma) towards
Institution and Society.

15 Hours

(6 Hours)

(05 Hours)

(04 Hours)




o Deparmment can debate on the role of Constitution in the development ol India.

o Students esn empirically evidence the effectiveness of concepts like ~Freedom, Equality.
Justice, Rights and Duties by conducting empirical studies.

o Can invite experts to deliver special lectures {ndian freedom strugele ideals and yalues,
contributions made by athers

Suggested Readings:

1. Aiyungar KR, (941 “Anclent ndian Polity™. Oriental Bokks Agency. Poona. ‘
2. Altekar AS. 1949 “Syate and Government in Ancient India”, Motilsl Banarsidass Chowk,
Banaris.

3. Andre Beteille, 1965, Caste.class. and Power, University of Californii Press. Berkley.

4. Arora & Mukherji, 1992. Federatism in Indis, Origin and Developments. Vikas Publishing
House, New Delhi.

. Bakshi, 1999, P.M Constitution of India, Universal Law Publishing House, New Delhi,
Bulagangadhar. §N. 2021, “What Does it mean 10 be *Indian’ Notion Press, |ndica Academy.
Chennai.

7. Basu,D. D, 2022 “Introduction Lo the Constitution of India” 26th Edition, L:xich;is.-Ncw
Delhi
. Bhandarkar D.D. 1940. wSome Aspecis of Ancient Indian culture”, University of Madres.

9. Bhatgava, Rajeev. ed. 1998. Secularism and lts Critics, Oxford UniversityPress, New Delhi.

10, Chandra Bipan. 1979, “Narionalism and Colomialism in India”. Orient. Lang,

|1, Constitution ol India (Full  Text). India,gov.in., National  Portal  of India,
https:.‘fwmv.iudiu.gov.in/siwy’upload”ﬁies/npl!ﬁles!coi _part_full.pdf’ ‘

12, Desal. AR 2016. Soctul Background of Indian Nationalism. Los Angeles: PapularPrakashan.

13, Durga Dos Basu. 201 8 (23rd edn.) Introduction to the: Constitution of Tndia, Lexis Nexis
Gurgaon.

14, Gandhi, M.K. "Hind Swirrs]", hEps i -

| 5. Goshal LN, 1923, “History of Hindu Political Theory”. Oxford University Press, Culcutta.

|6, Granvitle Austin, 2000, The Indian Constitution: Cornerstone of u Nation. Oxford University
Press. Melboume.

17, Gupta, D. €, 1975. Indian Government and Politics, Vikas publishing House, New Delhi,

|8, Hanson and Douglas, 1972, Indis's Demogracy. W W Norton & Co Ine., New York city.

S in

{9, Harish Ramaswamy- and S, S. Patagundi(Ed.) 2007, Karnataka- Government wd Politics.
Concept Publishing Company, Delhi.

20, JN. Pandey. 2018 (S5thedn.) The Constitutional Law of India, Central Law Agency.

Alluhabad.

21, Jayaswal K.Po 1943, “Hindy Polity”". Bangalore Printing and Publishing Co. LTD.
Bangalore.

27 Jha, . N. 2005, Indan Political System.: Historieal Developments, Ganga Kaveri Publishing
House, Varanasl,

23, Johart, J.C., 1974, Indian Government and Politics. Vishal Publications, New Delhi.
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Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

2 Credits 1+2 Hrs 30 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Tutorial Classes, Group discussion,Seminar & field work etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the students will be able to

a. Appraise the theory of Artificial intelligence and list the significance of Al.

b. Discuss the various components that are involved in solving an Al problem.

c. Ilustrate the working of Al Algorithms in the given contrast.

d. Analyze the various knowledge representation schemes, Reasoning and Learning

techniques of Al
e. Apply the Al concepts to build an expert system to solve the real-world problems.
Syllabus Hours
Theory Models 15

Module No. 1: Azure AI Fundamentals (AI-900) 07

AI-900 pathway consists of 5 courses and 2 reading material:
i.
ii.
iii.

Introduction to Al on Azure
Use visual tools to create machine learning models with Azure Machine Learning
Explore computer vision in Microsoft Azure

iv.  Explore natural language processing
v.  Explore conversational Al
vi.  Tune Model Hyperparameters - Azure Machine Learning (Reading)
vii.  Neural Network Regression: Module Reference — Azure Machine Learning (Reading
Module No. 2: Data Analyst Associate (DA-100) 08

1.
1l.
1il.

DA-100 pathway consists of 5 courses and 2 reading material:

Get started with Microsoft data analytics
Prepare data for analysis
Model data in Power BI

iv.  Visualize data in Power BI
v. Data analysis in Power BI
vi. Manage workspaces and datasets in Power BI
vii.  Key Influencers Visualizations Tutorial - Power BI
viii. Smart Narratives Tutorial - Power BI | Microsoft Docs
Practical Modules 30 Hrs
For Module No. 1
1. Prepare the data
ii.  Model the data
. Visualize the data 15
iv. Analyse the data
v. Deploy and maintain deliverables
For Module No. 2
1. Describe Artificial Intelligence workloads and considerations
ii. Describe fundamental principles of machine learning on Azure 15




iii.  Describe features of computer vision workloads on Azure
iv. Describe features of Natural Language Processing (NLP) workloads on Azure

References To Learning Resources:
1. The Learning Resources Made Available For The Course Titled “Azure Ai
Fundamentals (Ai-900) And Data Analyst Associate (Da-100).” On Future Skills Prime

Platform Of Nasscom.

References
1. Peter Norvig , Paradigms of AI Programming: Case Studies in Common Lisp.
2. Tom Taulli. Artificial Intelligence Basics — A Non-technical Introduction.

3. Neil Wilkins, Artificial Intelligence: An Essential Beginner’s’ Guide to Al, Machine Learning,
Robotics, The Internet of things, Neural Networks, Deep Learning, Reinforcement Learning,
and Our future.

4. Deepak Kemani, A First Course in Artificial Intelligence.
5. Stuart J. Russell and Peter Norvig. Artificial Intelligence: A Modern Approach
6. Artificial Intelligence by Example, Denis Rothman.

Website: https://indiaclass.com/artificial-intelligence-reference-books
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Open Elective Courses (OEC) offered in the
2" Year (3" or 4" Semester) of B.Com Programme

Advertising Skills

Entrepreneurial Skills

OEC

Business Ethics

Corporate Governance

Note: The above Open Elective Courses (OEP) will be offered to BA., BVA., B.Sc.,, BSW., B.Sc. FAD.,
BCA., and BBA as per their o year Programme structure.



Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

3 Credits 3 Hrs 42 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Group discussion & Seminar etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the students will be able to
a. Familiarize with advertising concepts.

b. Able identify effective media choice for advertising.
c. Develop ads for different media.
d. Measure the advertising effectiveness.
e. Analyse the role of advertising agency.
Syllabus Hours
Module No. 1: Introduction to Advertising 10

Meaning, nature and importance of advertising; Types of advertising; Advertising
objectives. Audience analysis; Setting of advertising budget: Determinants and major
methods. Communication Process; Advertising as a tool of communication;

Module No. 2: Advertising Media Decisions 07

Major media types - their characteristics, internet as an advertising media, merits and demerits;
Factors influencing media choice; media selection, media scheduling, Advertising through the
Internet-media devices.

Module No. 3: Advertising Content Development 08

Advertising appeals, Advertising copy and elements, Preparing ads for different media,
Attention, Interest, Desire, and Action model (AIDA),

Module No. 4: Measuring Advertising Effectiveness 10

Evaluating communication and sales effects; Pre- and Post-testing techniques, DAGMAR

Module No. 5: Advertising Agency 07

a) Advertising Agency: Role, types and selection of advertising agency.

b) Social, ethical and legal aspects of advertising in India.

Skill Development Activities:

1. Analyze the audience feedback on advertisement of FMCG.

2. List out any ten products/services advertised through internet.

3. Design any two ads for print media.

4. Examine the legal aspects of advertising in India and submit the report.

5. Any other activities, which are relevant to the course.




Text Books:

1.

George E Belch, Michael A Belch, Keyoor Purani, Advertising and Promotion .An
Integrated Marketing Communications Perspective (SIE), McGraw Hill Education

S. Wats Dunn, and Arnold M. Barban. Advertising: It’s Role in Marketing.
Dryden Press

Burnett, Wells, and Moriatty. Advertising: Principles and Practice. Prentice Hall
of India, New Delhi.

Batra, Myers and Aakers. Advertising Management. PHI Learning.

5. Terence A. Shimp. Advertising and Promotion: An IMC Approach. Cengage

Learning.
Sharma, Kavita. Advertising: Planning and Decision Making, Taxmann Publications

Jaishree Jethwaney and Shruti Jain, Advertising Management, Oxford University Press,
2012

Chunawala and Sethia, Advertising, Himalaya Publishing House
Ruchi Gupta, Advertising, S. Chand & Co.

O’Guinn, Advertising and Promotion: An Integrated Brand Approach, Cengage
Learning

Note: Latest edition of text books may be used.




Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

3 Credits 3 Hrs 42 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Group discussion & Seminar etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the Students will be able to
a. Discover their strengths and weaknesses in developing the entrepreneurial mind-set.

b. Identify the different Government Institutions/Schemes available for promoting
Entrepreneurs.

c. Understand the various aspects to set-up an Enterprises.
d. Familiarise Mechanism of Monitoring and maintaining an Enterprises.

e. Know the various features for successful/unsuccessful entrepreneurs.

Syllabus Hours

Module No. 1: 10

Introduction

Need of becoming entrepreneur- ways to become a good entrepreneur-Enabling environment
available to become an entrepreneur. Self-discovery, Idea Generation-Idea Evaluation-
Feasibility analysis- Finding team-Preparation of business model.

Module No. 2: Promoting Entrepreneur 08
Introduction-Different Government institutions / schemes promoting entrepreneurs:
Gramin banks, PMMY-MUDRA Loan, DIC, SIDA, SISI, NSIC, and SIDO, etc.,

08

Module No. 3: Enterprise Set-up

Introduction — Ways to set up an enterprise and different aspects involved: legal

compliances, marketing aspect, budgeting etc.,

Module No. 4: Monitoring and Maintaining an Enterprise 10
Introduction — Day to day monitoring mechanism for marinating an enterprise- Different
Government Schemes supporting entrepreneurship.

06

Module No. 5: Caselets Discussion

Examples of successful and unsuccessful entrepreneurship of MUDRA Loan, Gramin
banks, SISI and NSIC etc.,




Skill Development Activities:
1. List out the discovery and evaluation of viable business ideas for new venture
creation.

2. Practice critical talents and traits required for entrepreneurs such as problemsolving,
creativity, communication, business math, sales, and negotiation

3. List out practical issues in setting-up of different enterprises.

4. Analyze the impact of various Government schemes in promotion
ofentrepreneurs.

5. Any other activities, which are relevant to the course.

Text Books:

1. Hisrich, Peters and Shepherd, Entrepreneurship - Starting, Developing, and
Management a new Enterprise, Irwin.

2. Alian Fayolle, Entrepreneurship and New Value Creation: The Dynamic of the
Entrepreneurial Process. Cambridge, Cambridge University Press

3. Hougaard S. (2005) The Business Idea: The Early Stages of Entrepreneurship, Berlin,
Springer
4. Lowe R & S Mariott (2006) Enterprise: Entrepreneurship & Innovation. Burlington,

Butterworth Heinemann

Note: Latest edition of text books may be used.




Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

3 Credits 3 Hrs 42 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classroom lectures, Case studies, Group discussion & Seminar etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the students will be able to
Explain the concepts of business ethics and its approaches.

Examine the business and organisational ethics in the present context.

Analyse the ethical aspects in marketing and HR areas.

Analyse the ethical aspects in finance and IT areas.

Examine the impact of globalisation on business ethics.

© e T

Syllabus Hours

Module No. 1: Business Ethics 08

Introduction — Meaning, Definition, importance and need for Business ethics. Values and morals.
Management and ethics, Normative Theories, — Gandhian Approach, Friedman‘s Economic
theory, Kant‘s Deontological theory, Mill & Bentham*s Utilitarianism theory.

Module No. 2: Business & Organisational Ethics | 10

The Indian Business scene, Ethical Concerns, LPG & Global trends in business ethics, Business
ethics rating in India. Organizations & Organisation culture, Types of Organization, Corporate
code of ethics—Formulating, Advantages, implementation Professionalism and professional ethics
code.

Module No. 3: Ethical Aspects in Organization - 1 | 08

Ethical issues in Marketing, Criticisms in Marketing ethics. Ethics in HRM: Selection, Training
and Development — Ethics at work place — Ethics in Performance Appraisal.

Module No. 4: Ethical Aspects in Organization - 11 | 08

Ethics in Finance: Insider trading-Ethical investment-Combating Frauds. Ethical issues in
Information Technology: Information Security and Threats-Intellectual Property Rights-
Cybercrime.

Module No. 5: Globalization and Business Ethics | 08

Growth of Global Corporations, Factors facilitating Globalisation, Impact of globalization on
Indian corporate and social culture, Advantages and disadvantages of MNC‘s to the Host
Country, International codes of Business Conduct, Whistle blowing and its codes.

Skill Development Activities:

1. The students may be asked to conduct the survey of any two organizations tostudy the ethical
practices.

List out any five most ethical rating of Indian companies.

Collect the information on unethical practices in marketing and HR area.

Collect the information on unethical practices in finance and IT area.

Analyse and submit the report on the impact of globalization on Indian businesshouses in the context
of ethical aspects.

6. Any other activities, which are relevant to the course.

AW

Text Books:

1. Laura P Hartman, T, Perspectives in Business Ethics, Tata McGraw Hill.

2. B. H. Agalgatti & Banerjee, Business Ethics —Concept & Practice, NiraliPublication.
3. R. P. Banerjee, Ethics in Business & Management, Himalaya Publication

4. Crane, Business Ethics, Pub. By Oxford Press

5. CS V Murthy, Business Ethics, Himalaya Publishing House
Note: Latest edition of text books may be used.




Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

3 Credits 3 Hrs 42 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classroom lectures, Case studies, Group discussion & Seminar etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the Students will be able to
a. Identify the importance of corporate governance.

Know the rights, duties and responsibilities of Directors.

Analyse the legal & regulatory framework of corporate governance.

Outline the importance and role of board committee.

Understand the major expert committees’ Reports on corporate governance.

© oo o

Syllabus Hours

Module No. 1: Corporate Governance (CG) 10

Introduction: Meaning, Definition, Principles and need of CG. OECD Principles of CG.
Theories of CG-Agency theory and stewardship theory. Models of CG around the world, Evolution
of CG (Ancient and Modern). Generation of Value from Performance - Principles of CG.

Module No. 2: Corporate and Board Management 10

Corporate Business Ownership Structure - Board of Directors — Role, Composition. Types of
Directors- Promoter, Nominee, Shareholder, Independent. Rights, Duties and Responsibilities of
Directors. Role of Directors and Executives — Responsibility for Leadership, Harmony between
Directors and Executives. Executive Management Process, Executive Remuneration - Functional
Committees of Board - Rights and Relationship of Shareholders and Other Stakeholders.

Module No. 3: Legal and Regulatory Framework of Corporate Governance 08

Need for Legislation of Corporate Governance - Legislative Provisions of Corporate Governance
in Companies Act 1956, Securities (Contracts and Regulations) Act, 1956 (SCRA), Depositories
Act 1996, Securities and Exchange Board of India Act 1992, Listing Agreement, Banking Regulation
Act, 1949 and Other Corporate Laws - Legal Provisions relating to Investor Protection.

Module No. 4: Board Committees and Role of Professionals 08

Board Committees - Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Shareholders’ Grievance
Committee. Need, Functions and Advantages of Committees. Constitution and Scope of Board
Committees. Board Committees’ Charter - Terms of Reference and Accountability and
Performance Appraisals. Independence of Members of Board Committees. Role of Company
Secretaries in compliance of Corporate Governance.

Module No. 5: Corporate Governance - Codes and Practices 06

Introduction - Major Expert Committees’ Reports of India - Study of Codes of Corporate
Governance - Best Practices of Corporate Governance - Value Creation through Corporate Governance
- Corporate Governance Ratings.




Skill Development Activities:

1.

Collect the annual reports of any two companies, find out the corporate
governance aspects in the reports.

Collect any two companies Board of Directors names and find out their nature of
directorship.

Prepare report on the applicability of different models of Corporate Governance.

4. Critically compare the recommendations of various corporate governance committees.

5. Any other activities, which are relevant to the course.
Text Books:

1. Bairs N. and D Band, Winning Ways through Corporate Governance, MacmillanL.ondon.

2. Charkham J, Keeping Good Company: A Study of Corporate Governance in Five
Countries, Oxford University Press, London.

3. Subhash Chandra Das, Corporate Governance in India — An Evaluation (Third edition), PHI
Learning Private Limited.

4. Clark T. and E Monk House, Rethinking the Company, Pitman, London.

5. Fernando A.C, Corporate Governance, Pearson Education.

6. Prentice D.D. and PRJ Holland, Contemporary Issues in Governance, ClarendonPress.

7. Report of the Cadbury Committee on Financial Aspects of Corporate
Governance, London Stock Exchange, London.

8. Report on Corporate Governance, Confederation of India Industries and Bombay.

Note: Latest edition of text books may be used.
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A. Scheme of Teaching & Evaluation for B.Com.

Semester V
Teaching
sl 1 Category of Hours per Total ;
No. Course Code Title of the Course Courses Week SEE CIE | Marks Credits
[L+T+P)
36| COM5.1 Financial Management DSC-13 3+0+2 60 40 100 4
Tax Law and
37| coms.a [neome laxtawa psc-14 | 3+0+2 | 60| 40| 100 4
Practice-|
Principles and Practice of
38| COM 5.3 Auditing DSC-15 4+0+0 60 40 100 4
39| COM 5.4 Elective 1 DSE-1 34+0+2 60 40 100 4
40| COM 5.5 Elective 2 DSE-2 3+0+2 60 40 100 4
41| COM 5.6 A. GST- Law & Practice Vocational-1 3+0+2 60 40 100 3
- . Anyone to be
B. Digital Marketing e
42| COM5.7 Tally Prime ERP SEC—SB | 2+0+2 60 40 100 3
Advanced Excel Anyone to be
chosen
Employability Skills
Cyber Security
Sub -Total (D) 420 | 280 700 26
Elective Groups and Courses:
Discipline Specific Electives —V Semester (5.4 / 5.5)
Course Course Course Course Course
sl. Code Ascounting Code Eaice Code Marketing Code Human Code Information
No Resources Systems
1 Al Indian Fl Financial M1 Retail H1 Human 11 Basics of
Accounting Institutions Management Resources Business
Standards- | and Development Analytics
Markets
Note:

1. Under DSE, Dual Specialization to be offered, students should choose two elective groups from the

above elective groups. Same elective groups should be continued in the 6" Semester also.
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Semester VI
sl. Teaching
Course Code Title of the Course i ] W v sl BT T sl | credits
No. (L+T+P)
Advanced Financial
43| com6.1 eidtal Dsc-16 | 3+0+2 | 60| 40| 100 4
Management
Tax La
2| compy [ncame ey tawand Dsc-17 | 3+0+2 | 60| 40| 100 4
Practice-I|
Manage t
45| comM 6.3 e psc-18 | 3+0+2 | 60| 40| 100| 4
Accounting
46| COM 6.4 Elective 1 DSE-3 3+0+2 60 40 100 4
47| COM 6.5 Elective 2 DSE 4- 3+0+2 60 40 100 4
A. Assessment of . 60| 40
48| COM 6.6 persons other than- [ Yosational-2l 5. 4.9 100 3
Individuals & Filing
of ITRs Anyone to
B. E- Commerce be chosen
45| COM 6.7 Internship/Company -1 2+0+0 60| 40| 100 3
Analysis Report
Sub -Total (D) 420| 280 | 700 26
Elective Groups and Courses:
Discipline Specific Electives — VI Semester (6.4/6.5)
S Course | Accounting Course Finance Course Marketing Course st Course Iefomtistion
No. Code Code Code Code Resources Code Systems
1 A2 Indian F2 Investment M2 Customer H2 Cultural 12 HR
Accounting Management Relationship Diversity Analytics
Standards-2 Management at Work
Place
Note:

1. Under DSE, Dual Specialization to be offered, students should choose two elective groups from the
above elective groups. Same elective groups should be continued in the 6t Semester also.

2. The students shall undergo 4 to 5 weeks of internship programme in any business organization
immediately after completion of 5t Semester B.Com Examination and submit the Internship/
Company Analysis Report one week before the last Working day of the VI Semester. Viva-voce to be
conducted before the last working day. Viva-voce Shall be treated as Internal Assessment
Component.
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General Instructions :

1. Teaching Hours for all Practical oriented/ problem solving courses like

Accounting, Taxation and Finance shall be in 3+0+2 format (L+T+P)

2. Any one Skill Enhancement Course shall be chosen out of the list during V

Semester B.Com

i. Tally Prime ERP
ii. Advanced Excel
iii. Employability Skills
iv. Cyber Security

3. Evaluation of the Internship / Company Analysis Report:

d.

After the successful submission of the report by students, Examiners from
the panel of examiners of Cluster of colleges shall evaluate the report for
60 marks as per the Evaluation Format (Appendix XI).

HOD, Department of Commerce, concerned College shall prepare the
panel of examiners with one external examiner to conduct of viva voce for
40 marks as per the Viva voce format (Appendix XII).

It is the responsibility of the HOD, Department of Commerce, concerned
College to submit the final consolidated marks to the University as per the
calendar of events as notified by the University.

20-25 students shall be allotted to each Project Guide and the teaching
hours for guiding the students shall be considered as 2 hours per week

For further guidelines, refer the detailed guidelines for Internship /
Company Analysis Report.



Name of the Program: Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com.)
Course Code: COM .5.1
Name of the Course: Financial Management

Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

4 Credits 3+0+2 Hrs 60 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Tutorial Classes, Group discussion, Seminar & field
work etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the students’ will be able to
a) Understand the role of financial managers effectively in an organization.
b) Apply the compounding & discounting techniques for time value of money.
¢ Take investment decision with appropriate capital budgeting technigues
forinvestment proposals.
d) Understand the factors influencing the capital structure of an organization.
e} Estimate the working capital requirement for the smooth running of the business

Syllabus: Hours

Module No. 1: Introduction to Financial Management 12

Introduction —Meaning of Finance, Finance Function, Objectives of Finance function,
Organization of Finance function -Meaning and definition of Financial Management; Goals of
Financial Management, Scope of Financial Management, Functions of Financial Management,
Role of Finance Manager in India. Financial planning-- Meaning —-Need — Importance -Steps in
financial Planning —Principles of a sound financial plan and Factors affecting financial plan.

Module No. 2: Time Value of Money | 10

Introduction — Meaning of time value of money-time preference of money- Techniques of time
value of money: Compounding Technique-Future value of Single flow, Multiple flow and
Annuity -Discounting Technique-Present value of Single flow, Multiple flow — and Annuity.
Doubling Period- Rule 69 and 72.

Module No. 3: Financing Decision | 14

Introduction-Meaning and Definition of Capital Structure, Factors determining the Capital
Structure, Concept of Optimum Capital Structure, EBIT-EPS Analysis- Problems. Leverages:

Meaning and Definition, Types of Leverages- Operating Leverage, Financial Leverage and
Combined Leverages. Problems.

Module No. 4: Investment Decision I 12

Introduction-Meaning and Definition of Capital Budgeting, Features, Significance — Steps in
Capital Budgeting Process. Techniques of Capital budgeting: Traditional Methods — Pay Back
Period, and Accounting Rate of Return — DCF Methods: Net Present Value Internal Rate of
Return and Profitability Index- Problems.

Module 5: Working Capital Management | 12

Introduction- Meaning and Definition, types of working capital, Operating cycle,
Determinants of working capital needs — Estimation of working capital requirements (Current
assets and current liabilities method). dangers of excess and inadequate working capital,
Merits of adequate working capital, Sources of working capital.

Cash Management, Receivable Management, and Inventory Management (Concepts only).




Skill Development Activities:

Visit the Finance Department of any organization and collect and record the Functions
and Responsibilities of Finance Manager.

As a finance manager of a company advice the management in designing an appropriate
Capital Structure.

Evaluate a capital investment proposal by using NPV method with imaginary figures.
llustrate with imaginary figures the compounding and discounting techniques of time
value of money.

Estimate working capital requirements of an organization with imaginaryfigures.

Any other activities, which are relevant to the course.

1

Books for Reference:

1.

W

o~ oW

9.

| M Pandey, Financial management, Vikas Publications, New Delhi.

Abrish Guptha, Financial Management, Pearson.

Khan & Jain, Basic Financial Management, TMH, New Delhi.

S N Maheshwari, Principles of Financial Management, Sulthan Chand & Sons, New
Delhi.

Chandra & Chandra D Bose, Fundamentals of Financial Management, PHI, New Delhi.
B.Mariyappa, Financial Management, Himalaya Publishing House.

Ravi M Kishore, Financial Management, Taxman Publications

Prasanna Chandra, Financial Management - Theory and Practice, Tata McGraw Hill.
G. Sudarsana Reddy, Financial Management, Himalaya Publishing House

Note: Latest edition of books may be used.




Name of the Program: Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com.)
Course Code: COM 5.2
Name of the Course: Income Tax Law and Practice — |

Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

4 Credits 3+0+2 Hrs 60 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Tutorial classes, Group discussion, Seminar & field
work etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the students will be able to

a) Comprehend the procedure for computation of Total Income and tax liability of an
individual and Income Tax authorities,

b) Understand the provisions for determining the residential status of an Individual.

¢) Comprehend the meaning of Salary, Perquisites, Profit in lieu of salary, allowances and
various retirement benefits.

d) Compute the income house property for different categories of house property.

e) Comprehend TDS & advances tax Ruling.

Syllabus: Hours

Module No. 1: Basic Concepts of income Tax and Income Tax Authorities 12

Introduction —Meaning of tax-, types of taxes, cannons of taxation. Brief history of Indian Income
Tax, legal framework of taxation, Important definitions, assessment, assessment year, previous
year including exceptions, assesses, person, income, casual income, Gross total income, Total
income, Agricultural income, scheme of taxation, — Exempted incomes of individuals under
section 10 of the Income Tax Act, 1961, Income Tax Authoritiestheir Powers and duties.

Module No. 2: Residential Status and Incidence of Tax [ 10

Introduction — Residential status of an individual. Determination of residential status of an
individual. Incidence of tax or Scope of Total income. Problems on computation of Gross total
Income of an individual.

Module No. 3: Income from Salary | 20

Introduction - Meaning of Salary -Basis of charge Definitions—Salary, Perquisites and profits in
lieu of salary - Provident Fund —Transferred balance. - Retirement Benefits — Gratuity, pension
and Leave salary. Deductions and Problems on Computation of Taxable Salary.

Module No. 4: Income from House Property | 10

Introduction - Basis for charge - Deemed owners -House property incomes exempt from tax,
composite rent and unrealized rent. Annual Value —Determination of Annual Value
- Deductions from Annual Value - Problems on Computation of Income from House Property.

Module No. 5: Tax Deduction at Sources & Advance Tax Ruling | 08

Introduction - Meaning of TDS - Provisions regarding TDS - TDS to be made from Salaries
- Filing of Quarterly statement — Theory and Problems; Advance Tax: Meaning of advance tax -
Computation of advance tax - Instalment of advance tax and due dates.




Skill Developments Activities:

s 8
2.

&

6.

Prepare a slab rates chart for different Individual assesses.

Visit any Chartered Accountants office, Collect and record the procedure involved in
filing the Income tax returns of an Individual.

List out any 10 Incomes exempt from tax under section 10 of an Individual.

Prepare the chart of perquisites received by an employee in an organization.
Identify and collect various enclosures pertaining to Income tax returns of an

individual.
Any other activities, which are relevant to the course.

Books for Reference:

1. Mehrotra H.C and T.S.Goyal, Direct taxes, Sahithya Bhavan Publication, Agra.

;v os W

Vinod K. Singhania, Direct Taxes, Taxman Publication Private Ltd, New Delhi.

Gaur and Narang, Law and practice of Income Tax, Kalyani Publications, Ludhiana.
Bhagawathi Prasad, Direct Taxes.

B.Mariyappa, Income tax Law and Practice-l, Himalaya Publishing House. New Delhi.s

6. Dr. Saha, Law and Practice of Income Tax, Himalaya Publishing House.
Note: Latest edition of text books may be used.




Name of the Program: Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com.)
Course Code: COM 5.3
Name of the Course: Principles and Practice of Auditing

Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

4 Credits 3+0+42 Hrs 60 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Group discussion, Seminar & field work
etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the students’ will be able to
a) Understand the conceptual framework of auditing.
b) Examine the risk assessment and internal control in auditing
d Comprehend the relevance of IT in audit and audit sampling for testing.
d) Examine the company audit and the procedure involved in the audit of different entities.
e) Gain knowledge on different aspect of audit reporting and conceptual framework
applicable on professional accountants.

Syllabus: Hours

Module No. 1: Introduction to Auditing 10

Introduction — Meaning and Definition — Objectives— Types of Audit— Merits and Demerits of
Auditing — Relationship of audit with other disciplines. Preparation before commencement of
new audit - Working Papers -Audit Note Book, Audit Programme Qualities of an Auditor — Audit
planning — Audit strategy —Audit Engagement -Audit Documentation - Audit Evidence —
Written Representation.

Module No. 2: Risk Assessment and Internal Control | 12

Introduction — Audit risk — Assessment of risk - Internal Control-Meaning and objectives— Internal
check- Meaning, objectives and fundamental Principles. internal check with regards to wage
payment, cash sales, and cash purchases.

Module No. 3: Verification and Valuation of Assets and Liabilities | 12

Meaning and objectives of verification and valuation — Position of an auditor as regards the
valuation of assets- Verification and Valuation of different items of Assets- Land and Building,
Plant and Machinery, Goodwill, Investments, Stock in Trade. Liabilities-Bills payable, Sundry
Creditors and Contingent liabilities.

Module No. 4: Company Audit and Audit of other Entities | 13

Company Auditor: appointment, Qualification, powers, duties and liabilities, professional ethics
of an auditor. Other Entities: Audit Procedure of NGOs - Charitable institutions - Educational
institutions — Government — Local Bodies — Cooperative societies — hotels — hospitals — clubs &
Banks.

Module 5: Audit Report & Professional Ethics \ 13

Introduction — Meaning — Elements of audit report ~Types of audit report - Independent
Auditor’s report and their illustration; Professional Ethics: Code of Ethics - Professional
Accountants in Public practices and business — Fundamental Principles of Professional Ethics.




| skill Development Activities:
1. Design and develop an audit plan program for a joint stock company
2. List the various documents necessary to be verified in the audit process
3. Draft an audit report (qualified or clean) with imaginary data.
4. Visit an audit firm, write about the procedure followed by them in auditing the books
of accounts of a firm.
5. Record the verification procedure with respect to any one fixed asset.
6. Draft an audit program.
7. Any other activities, which are relevant to the course.
Books for Reference:
1. ICAI Study Materials on Auditing and Assurance
2. B.N. Tandon, Principles of Auditing, S. Chand and Company, New Delhi.
3. T.R.Sharma, Auditing Principles and Problems, Sahitya Bhawan, Agra.
4. J.M. Manjunatha and others, Auditing and Assurance, HPH.
5. Gupta Karnal, Contemporary Auditing, Tata Mc. Graw-Hill, New Delhi.
6. R.G.Saxena, Principles of Auditing.
Note: Latest edition of books may be used.




Name of the Programme: Bachelor of Commerce ( B.Com)

Course Code: COM Al
Name of the Course: Indian Accounting Standards-1
Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No of
Teaching Hours
3 Credits 3+0+2 Hrs 45 Hrs

Pedagogy: Lectures in the Classroom, Reading and analysis of annual reports of
listed companies; writing assignment, seminar presentation, group discussion.

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the students’ will be able to
a) Understand the need and benefits of accounting standards.
b) Prepare the financial statements as Indian Accounting standards.
¢) Comprehend the requirements of Indian Accounting Standards for
recognition, measurement and disclosures of certain items appearin
financial statements
d) Understand the Accounting Standards for Items that do not Appear in
Financial Statements

Syllabus Hours

Module No. - 1 Introduction to Indian Accounting Standards. 10

Introduction- Meaning and Definition of Accounting Standards — Objectives of Accounting
Standards — Benefits and Limitations of Accounting Standards — Process of Formulation of
Accounting Standards in India — List of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) — Need for
Convergence Towards Global Standards— International Financial Reporting Standards -
Features and Merits and Demerits of IFRS — Benefits of Convergence with IFRS —
Applicability of Ind AS in India.

Module No. 2 Preparation of Financial Statements (ind AS 1) | 12

Frame work for preparation of Financial Statements, presentation of Financial Statement
as per Ind AS 1. Statement of Profit and Loss, Balance Sheet, Statement of changes in
Equity, statement of Cash flow and Notes to accounts. Problems on preparation of
Statement of Profit and Loss and Balance Sheet as per Schedule Ill of Companies Act, 2013.

Module No. - 3 Provision under Accounting Standard for Items Appear in 10
Financial Statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment (Ind AS-16) - Intangible assets (Ind AS-38) - Impairment of
assets (Ind AS-36) — Inventories (Ind AS 2) - Borrowing costs (Ind AS- 23) — Investment
Property (Ind AS-40) —objectives, Scope, definitions, Recognition Measurement and
disclosures of the above-mentioned Standards. Simple problems on Ind AS -2, 16 the above
standards.

Module No.- 4 Provisions under Accounting Standards for Items that do not | 08
Appear in Financial Statements.

Segment Reporting (Ind AS 108), Related Party Discloser (Ind AS 24), Events Occurring after
Balance Sheet Date (Ind AS 10), Interim Financial Reporting (Ind AS 34).

Module No. - 5 Liability Based Indian Accounting Standards. 05




Provisions, Contingent liabilities and c ontingent assets (Ind AS 37) — Scope,
provision, liability, obligating event, legal obligation, constructive obligation, contingent
liability, contingent asset, relationship between provisions and contingent liability,
recognition of provisions, Contingent asset and contingent liability, Measurement and
Disclosure of Information in the Financial Statements.

Skill Development Activities:

1. Explain the structure and functions of Indian Accounting Standards Board

2. Set out the procedure for issue of an Accounting Standard bythe
Accounting Standards Board.

3. List out the financial statements in accordance with Ind AS 1 and show the
formats of the same with imaginary figures.
Explain the main provisions of Ind AS 2, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 18

5. State and explain the provisions pertaining to Segment Reportingand
Related Party Disclosure under Ind AS.

Books for Reference:

1. Study material of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
2. Anil Kumar, Rajesh Kumar and Mariyappa, Indian Accounting Standards, HPH
3. Miriyala, Ravikanth, Indian Accounting Standards Made Easy, Commercial Law
Publishers
4. A.L.Saini IFRS for India, , Snow white publications.
5. CA Shibarama Tripathy Roadmap to IFRS and Indian Accounting
Standards
6. Ghosh TP, IFRS for Finance Executives Taxman Allied Services Private
Limited.
Note: Latest edition of books may be used




Name of the Program: Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com.)
Course Code: COM F1
Name of the Course: Financial Institutions and Markets

Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

3 Credits 3+0+2 Hrs 45 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Group discussion, Seminar & field work
etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the students’ will be able to
a) Understand the structure of Indian financial system and its constituents.
b) Outline the role of capital and money market in economic development.
¢) Comprehend primary and secondary market and its relevance in capital formation.
d) Appraise the role played by banking and development financial institutions in economic
development so far.
e) Understand the different types of NBFCs and their contribution.

Syllabus: Hours

Module No. 1: Financial System in India 08

Introduction — Meaning of Financial System- Financial concepts - Constituents of Financial
System — Structure of Financial System — Role of Financial system- Functions of Financial System
— Development of Financial System in India. Financial Sector Reforms - Financial System and
Economic Development — Weakness of Indian financial system.

Module No. 2: Capital Market & Money Market \ 08

Capital Market: Meaning —Structure, Importance — Functions — Players in the Capital Market —
Instruments of Capital Market — Components of Capital Market — Recent trends in Capital
Market.

Money Market: Meaning-Structure, functions Importance — Functions — Instrument of
Money Market — Recent trends in Money Market.

Module No. 3: Primary Market & Secondary Market | 10

Primary Market: Meaning, features, players of primary market, Instruments in primary market,
Merits and Demerits of primary markets— Methods of floating new issues: Public issue-Offer for
sale — Right Issue — Private placement — Problems of Indian Primary Markets;

Secondary Market: Meaning, structure, functions, players in Stock Market, Merits and Demerits
of stock markets. Methods in Stock Markets - Recognition of stock exchanges — Function of stock
exchanges of BSE- NSE — Listing of securities — Trading and Settlement Procedure in the Stock
Market - Problems of Indian Stock Market; SEBI: Objectives - functions —Role and Reforms in
Secondary Market.

Module No. 4 Banking & Development Financial Institutions | 12

Banking: Introduction — Meaning — Role and functions — Types of Banks; Development Financial
Institutions: History — Management - Role & Functions of EXIM Bank -NABARD, SIDBI — MUDRA
—NHB - LIC & GIC - UTI - SFCs.

Module No. 5: Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) & Forex Market | 07

Introduction — Meaning- Role — Importance — Types of NBFCs — Insurance Companies - Loan
Companies - Investment Companies — Leasing & Hire Purchase - Housing Finance,— Chit Funds -
Mutual funds -Venture Capital Funds - Factors & Forfeiting - Credit Rating - Depository and
Custodial Services.

Forex market- Concept- Meaning- Importance-Merits of forex market- Fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates- Causes and Effects.




skill Developments Activities:

1.
2.

6.

List out any five recent Financial Sectors Reforms and analyse them.

Collect Share Application Forms of any five different companies who have offered IPO in
the last or present financial year.

Collect data on last financial year price rigging and insider trading cases reported as per
SEBI.

Visit website of Development Financial Institutions (DFls) and prepare report on the
history/milestone and functions of the DFls

Identify the Different types of Venture capital firms operating in Karnataka and their
investment.

Any other activities, which are relevant to the course.

Books for Reference:

1.

v B W

7.

Note

Livingston, Miles; Financial Intermediaries; Blackwell

Sudhindra Bhat, Financial Institutes and Markets, Excel Books.

Niti Bhasin; Banking and Financial Markets in India 1947 To 2007; New Century.
Khan M.Y, Indian Financial Systems, Tata McGraw Hill, New Delhi.

E Gordon, K.Natarajan (2010). Financial Markets and Services. Himalaya Publishing
House, New Delhi

Shashi k Guptha, Nisha Aggarwal & Neeti Guptha (2008), Financial Markets. Kalyani
Publishers, New Delhi

Vasanth Desai (2009). Financial Markets and Services. Himalaya Publishing House.

: Latest edition of books may be used.




Name of the Program: Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com.)
Course Code: COM H1
Name of the Course: Human Resources Development

Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

3 Credits 3+0+2 Hrs 45 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Tutorial Classes, Group discussion, Seminar
& field work etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the students’ will be able to
a) Understand the need of HRD.
b) Comprehend the framework of HRD.
¢ Know the models for evaluating the HRD programs.
d) Comprehend the need for employee counselling.
e) Apprehend the HR performance.

Syllabus: Hours

Module No. 1: Conceptual Analysis of HRD 08

Introduction — Meaning and Definition of HRD, Need for HRD-Multiple Goals of HRD, HRD
Department and its Task, HRD for Organizational Effectiveness, HRD in the Indian Context, HRD

Mechanisms, Employee Empowerment, HRD as a Motivational Factor,
Concerns of Trade Unions.

Module No. 2: Frame Work of Human Resource Development 10

Frame work of Human Resource Development - HRD Processes - Assessing HRD Needs

- HRD Model - Designing Effective HRD Program - HRD Interventions- Creating HRD Programs -
Implementing HRD programs - Training Methods - Self Paced/Computer Based/ Company
Sponsored Training - On-the-Job and Off-the-Job - Brain Storming - Case Studies - Role Plays -
Simulations — T-Groups - Transactional Analysis.

Module No. 3: Evaluating HRD Programs | 08

Introduction- - Models and Frame Work of Evaluation - Assessing the Impact of HRD Programs -
Human Resource Development Applications - Fundamental Concepts of
Socialization - Realistic Job Review - Career Management and Development.

Module No. 4: Management Development | 09

Introduction - Employee counselling and wellness services — Counselling as an HRD Activity-
Counselling Programs - Issues in Employee Counselling - Employee Wellness
and Health Promotion Programs - Organizational Strategies Based on Human Resources.

Module No. 5: HR Performance | 10

Introduction -Work Force Reduction, Realignment and Retention - HR Performance and Bench
Marking - Impact of Globalization on HRD- Diversity of Work Force - HRD programs for diverse
employees - Expatriate & Repatriate support and development.

Skill Development Activities:
1. Discuss with HR manager on HRD and report on the same.
2. Visit any Organisation in your locality, collect information and report on
employee welfare facilities provided by the company.
3. Meet HR trainer, discuss their role and responsibilities.
Visit any Organisation, discuss with employees about effectiveness of training.
5. Any other activities, which are relevant to the course.




Books for Reference:

A
2.

wa

10.
11

12,
13.

Werner & Desimone, Human Resource Development, Cengage Learning.

William E. Blank, Handbook for Developing Competency Based Training

Programmes, Prentice -Hall, New Jerse

Uday Kumar Haldar, Human Resource Development, Oxford University Press.

Srinivas Kandula, Strategic Human Resource Development, PHI Learning.

Nadler, Leonard: Corporate Human Resource Development, Van Nostrand

Reinhold, ASTD, New York.

Rao, T.V and Pareek, Udai: Designing and Managing Human Resource Systems, Oxford
IBH Pub. Pvt. Ltd., New Delhi, 2005.

Rao, T.V: Readings in HRD, Oxford IBH Pub. Pvt. Ltd., New Delhi, 2004.

Viramani, B.R and Seth, Parmila: Evaluating Management Development, Vision Books,
New Delhi.

Rao, T.V. (et.al): HRD in the New Economic Environment, Tata McGraw-Hill Pub.Pvt,
Ltd., New Delhi, 2003. '

Rao, T.V: HRD Audit, Sage Publications, New Delhi.

ILO, Teaching and Training Methods for Management Development Hand Book,
McGraw-Hill, New York.

Rao, T.V: Human Resource Development, Sage Publications, New Delhi.

Kapur, Sashi: Human Resource Development and Training in Practice, Beacon Books,
New Delhi.

Note: Latest Edition of books may be used.




Name of the Program: Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com.)
Course Code: COM 11
Name of the Course: Basics of Business Analytics

Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

3 Credits 3+0+2 Hrs 45 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Tutorial Classes, Group discussion, Seminar
& field work etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the students’ will be able to
a) Understand analytical applications in practice.
b) Validate sources of data, use statistical resources and apply tools and techniques learnt
to solve real time problems.
¢) Formulate and manipulate business models, using quantitative methods including
spreadsheets and graphical methods, in order to find solutions to real time problems.
d) Be aware about the emerging trends in the world of analytics.

Syllabus: Hours

Module No. 1: Introduction to Business Analytics 07

Data, Types of Data- Forms of Data-Evolution of Big Data- Business Analytics -Need for
Analytics- Types of Analytics-Importance of Business Analytics in Decision Making-
Analytics Process Model-SMART model-Spreadsheet analysis-Internet of Things.

Module No. 2: Technology of Big Data | 06

Overview of DBMS, Data Warehousing: Concepts, Need, Objectives— Relevance of Data
Warehousing in Business Analytics-Data Mining-Application of Data Mining- Data Mining
Technique- Data Classification- Hadoop Distributed File System-Features of HDFS- MapReduce-
Features of MapReduce.

Module No. 3: Data Scientists and Data Visualization | 10

Data Scientists-New Era of Data Scientists -Data Scientist model- Sources of Data scientists-
Horizontal Versus Vertical Data Scientists- Retention of Data Scientists- Data Visualization-Types
of Data Visualization -Issues in Data Visualization-Tools in data visualization- Data Collection,
Sampling and Pre-processing- Types of Data Sources- Sampling-Types of Data Elements-Visual
Data Exploration and Exploratory Statistical Analysis-Missing Values-Missing Values-
Standardizing Data-Categorization-Weights of Evidence Coding-Variable Selection-Segmentation

Module No. 4: Practices of Analytics ' | 12

Predictive Analytics- Target Definition-Linear Regression -Logistic Regression -Decision Trees -
Neural Networks -Support Vector Machines-Ensemble Methods -Multiclass Classification
Techniques -Evaluating Predictive Models-Descriptive Analytics- Association Rules -Sequence
Rules —Segmentation-Survival Analysis- Survival Analysis Measurements-Kaplan Meier Analysis-
Parametric Survival Analysis-Proportional Hazards Regression-Extensions of Survival Analysis
Models-Evaluating Survival Analysis Models-Social Network Analytics-Social Network
Definitions-Social Network Metrics-Social Network Learning-Relational Neighbor Classifier-
Probabilistic Relational Neighbor Classifier -Relational Logistic Regression-Collective Inferencing
—Egonets- Mobile Analytics- Practices of analytics in - Google-General Electric-Microsoft-Kaggle-
Facebook-Amazon.




Module No. 5: Big Data and Emerging trends | 10

Data for Big Data-Enterprise orientation for Big data —leadership ~Targets-Analysts- Other
Factors to Consider in Big Data Success-Emerging Technologies in Health Information Systems:
Transforming Health in Information Era-Omics Revolution and Personalized Medicine-Genomic
Data Integration into Medical Records-Socio- demographic Data for Health Records-Family
Health History-Genomics Driven Wellness Tracking and Management System (GO-WELL)-
Emerging trends of analytics in Education, Government, Finance & Supply Chain Management.

Skill Development Activities:
Course teacher can identify and give the skill development activities.

Books for Reference:
1. Big Data Black Book, DT Editorial Services, Dreamtech Press, 2015.
2. Big Data at Work, Thomas H. Davenport, Harvard Business Review Press, Boston,
Massachusetts, 2014.
3. Analytics in a Big Data World, John Wiley & Sons, Inc., Hoboken, New
Jersey,2014.
4. Big Data and Internet of Things: A Roadmap for smart Environments, Nik Bessis Ciprian
Dobre Editors, Springer International Publishing Switzerland 2014
Note: Latest edition of books may be used.




Name of the Program: Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com.)

Course Code: COM M1
Name of the Course: Retail Management

Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

3 Credits 3+0+2 45 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Group discussion, Seminar & field work etc.,

Course Qutcomes: On successful completion of the course, the students’ will be able to
a) Understand the contemporary of retail management, issues, strategies and trends in
Retailing.
b) Utilize the theories and strategies of retail planning.
) Perceive the role and responsibilities of store manager and examine the visual
merchandising and its techniques in the present context.
d) Prioritize the factors to be considered while fixing the price in retailing.

e) Comprehend the emerging trends in Retail Industry.
Syllabus: : Hours

Module No. 1: Introduction to Retailing 08

Introduction — Meaning and Definition — Characteristics of Retailing -Functions of Retailing- Types
of Retailing- Forms of Retailing based on ownership. Retail Theories- Wheel of Retailing- Retail
Life cycle- Retail Business in India. Influencing factor- Present Indian retail scenario. International
Perspective in Retail Business.

Module No. 2: Consumer Behaviour in Retail Business | 10

Buying Decision Process and its Implication on Retailing — Influence of Group and Individual
Factors, Customer Shopping Behaviour, Customer Service and Customer Satisfaction. Retail

Planning Process: Factors to Consider in Preparing a Business Plan —
Implementation — Risk Analysis.

Module No. 3: Retail Operations | 10

Factors Influencing location of Store - Market Area Analysis — Trade Area Analysis — Rating Plan
method - Site Evaluation. Retail Operations: Stores Layout and Visual Merchandising, Stores

designing, Space Planning, Inventory Management, Merchandise Management,
Category Management,

Module No. 4: Retail Marketing Mix | 07

Product: Decisions Related to Selection of Goods (Merchandise Management Revisited)
Decisions Related to Delivery of Service.

Pricing: Influencing Factors — Approaches to Pricing — Price Sensitivity - Value Pricing —
Markdown Pricing.

Place: Supply Channel-SCM Principles - Retail Logistics — Computerized Replenishment System-
Corporate Replenishment Policies.

Promotion: Setting objectives — Communication Effects - Promotional Mix.

Human Resource Management in Retailing — Manpower Planning — Recruitment and

Training — Compensation — Performance Appraisal Methods.

Module No. 5: Impact of Information Technology in Retailing | 10

Non-Store Retailing (E-Retailing) - The Impact of Information Technology in Retailing - Integrated
Systems and Networking — EDI — Bar Coding — Electronic Article Surveillance Electronic Shelf
Labels — Customer Database Management System. Legal Aspects in Retailing, Social Issues in
Retailing, Ethical Issues in Retailing. Artificial Intelligence in Retailing.




Skill Developments Activities:

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)

Identify any 10 Retail Business Stores at you Conveniences

Visit any Established Retail Mall and Draw a Chart of Product Segmentation

Make a list of factor influence on choice of retail stores

Conduct a survey after sale service of any retail outlet

Contact any retailer, collect the information on factors influencing on retail pricing.
Any other activities, which are relevant to the course.

Books for Reference:

1.

8.

9.

Barry Bermans and Joel Evans: "Retail Management — A Strategic Approach”, PHI New
Delhi,

A.).Lamba, "The Art of Retailing", Tata McGrawHill, New Delhi,
Swapna Pradhan: Retailing Management, , TMH

James R. Ogden & Denise T: Integrated Retail Management
Levy & Weitz: Retail Management -TMH

Rosemary Varley, Mohammed Rafig-: Retail Management
Chetan Bajaj: Retail Management -Oxford Publication.

Uniyal & Sinha: Retail Management - Oxford Publications.

Suja Nair: Retail Management

10. R.S Tiwari: Retail Management, HPH, New Delhi

Note: Latest edition of books may be used.




Name of the Program: Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com.)
Course Code: COM 5.6
Name of the Course: GST-Law & Practice

Course Credits No. of Hours per Week Total No. of Teaching Hours

3 Credits 3+0+2 Hrs 45 Hrs

Pedagogy: Classrooms lecture, Case studies, Tutorial Classes, Group discussion,
Seminar & field work etc.,

Course Outcomes: On successful completion of the course, the students’ will be able to
a) Comprehend the concepts of Goods and Services tax.
b) Understand the fundamentals of GST.
c) Analyse the GST Procedures in the Business.
d) Know the GST Assessment and its computation.

Syllabus: Hours

Module No. 1: Introduction to GST 08

Introduction-Meaning and Definition of GST, Objectives, Features, Advantages and
Disadvantages of GST, Taxes subsumed under GST, Structure of GST (Dual Model) - CGST, SGST

and IGST. GST Council, Composition, Powers and Functions. CGST
Act,2017-Feature and Important definitions.

Module No. 2: GST Registration and Taxable Event | 10

Registration under GST provision and process. Amendment and cancellation of registration,
Taxable event -Supply of goods and services-Meaning, Scope and types- composite supply,

Mixed supply. Determination of time and place of supply of goods
and services. Levy and collection of tax. List of exempted goods and services- Problems.

Module No. 3: Input Tax Credit | o8

Input Tax Credit - Eligible and Ineligible Input Tax Credit; Apportionments of Credit and Blocked
Credits; Tax Credit in respect of Capital Goods; Recovery of Excess Tax Credit; Availability of Tax

Credit in special circumstances; Transfer of Input tax, Reverse Charge
Mechanism, tax invoice, Problems on input tax credit.

Module No. 4: GST Assessment 10

Tax Invoice, Credit and Debit Notes, Returns, Audit in GST, Assessment: Self- Assessment,
Summary and Scrutiny. Special Provisions. Taxability of E-Commerce, Anti- Profiteering,
Avoidance of dual control- issues in filing of returns, monthly collection targets, GST Council
meetings.

Module No. 5: Vaiuations of Goods and Services Under GST | 09

Introduction to Valuation under GST, Meaning and Types of Consideration: a) Consideration
received through money b) Consideration not received in money c) Consideration received fully
in money, valuation rules for supply of goods and services:

1) General Valuation Rules; 2) Special Valuation Rules; Other cases for valuation of supply,
imported services, imported goods, valuation for discount. Transaction Value: Meaning and
conditions for transaction value, inclusive transaction value, and exclusive discount excluded
from transaction value. Problems on GST.
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